INVESTIGATING OFFICER’S REPORT
(Of Charges Under Article 32, UCMJ and R.C M 405, Manual for Courts-Martial) - .

EROM: (Nawe of Investigaiing Qfficer -

Lawt, First, MI)

ta. TO: (Name af Gfficeriwho direcied the
Investigation - Last, Firsi, ki

HQ, 3™ Brigade Combat Team
1°' Armored Division

_— Baghdad, Irag APO AE 09324,

b. GRADE | ¢, ORGANIZATION ° - ' 8. DATE OF REPORT
HQ, 3™ Brigade Combat Team
1°* Armored Division
Baghdad, Irag APO AE 09324 28 Oct 2003
b. TITLE ¢. ORGANIZATION '

3a. NAME OF ACCUSED {Last, First, M) b. GRADE | ¢, ssN d. ORGANIZATION &, DATE OF CHARGES
_ B Battery, 4-1 FA :
4cKENZIE, John C. E6  Baghdad, Irag 19 Sep 03
(Check appropriate answer) : YES | NC
. IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTIGLE 32, UCMJ, AND R.C. M. 465, MANUAL FOR COURTS-MARTIAL, X
P HAVE INVESTIGATED THE CHARGES APPENDED HERETO {Exhibit 13
. THE AGCUSED WAS REPRESENTED BY COUNSEL {If not, see 9 below) X
i UNSEL WHO REPRESENTED THE ACCUSED WAS QUALIFIED UNDER R.C.M. 406{d){2}, 502(d) X
a. ~M»‘\l\«'lE OF DEFENSE COUNSEL {Last, First, M) b. GRADE 8a. NAME OF ASSISTANT DEFENSE COUNSEL (#f any) b. GRADE
WSBH, Brian ' 03
. ORGANIZATION (i apprapriate} &. ORGANIZATION {If appropriace}
DS -
‘DS USALSA Field Office . :
. ADDRESS (If appropriate) ° d. ADORESS (if appropriate}
‘amp Victory
(" *hdad, Iraq
+ 4 fobe signed by accused if aceused waives counsel. If accused does not sign, investigating officer will explain in detail in frem 21.)
SLACE . b. DATE '
| HAVE BEEN INFORMED OF my RIGHT TO BE REPRESENTED IN THIS INVESTIGATION BY COUNSEL, INCLUDING MY RIGHT TO
CIVILIAN OR MILITARY COUNSEL OF MY CHOICE IF REASONABLY AVAILABLE, I WAIVE MY RIGHT TO COUNSEL IN THIS NVEST!-
GATION, ’ : :
SIGNATURE OF ACCUSED
1. AT THE BEGINNING OF THE INVESTIGATION | INFORMED THE ACCUSED OF:" (Check appropriate attswer) YES NO
THE CHARGE({S) UNDER INVESTIGATION X
 IIDENTITY OF THE AGCUSER X
THE RIGHT AGAINST SELF-INCRIMINATION UNDER ARTIGLE 31 X
THE PURPOSE OF THE INVESTIGATION X
THE RIGHT TO BE PRESENT THROUGHOUT THE TAKING OF EVIDENGE X
THE WITNESSES AND OTHER EVIDENCE KNOWN TO ME WHICH | EXPECT TO PRESENT X
THE RIGHT TO CROSS-EXAMINE WITNESSES X
THE RIGHT TO HAVE AVAILABLE WITNESSES AND EVIDENCE PRESENTED X
THE RIGHT TO PRESENT ANYTHING IN BEFENSE, EXTENUATION, OR MITIGATICN X
THE RIGHT TO MAKE A SWORN OR UNSWORN STATEMENT, ORALLY OR IN WRITING X
‘a. THE ACCUSED AND ACCUSED'S COUNSEL WERE PRESENT THROUGHOUT THE PRESENTATION OF EVIDENCE {tf the acensed X
ar cownsed were ahsent during any part af the presentation of evidence, complets b below, J

STATE THE CIRCUMSTANCES AND DESCRIBE THE PROCEEDINGS CONDUCTED IN THE ABSENSE OF ACCUSED OR COUNSEL
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NOTE: if additional space is required for any item, e
numerical and, if appropriate, lettered beading fhvanypfe:

the form: “See additional sheet,”

nter the additional material in #em 24 or on 2 separate sheet.
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ldentify such materiat with the proper
“7¢") Securely attach any edditionat sheets 10 the form and add a note it the appropriate Hem
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DD FORM 457, AUG 84 ( gEe) EDITION OF OCT 69 IS OBSOLETE. - : ' -

128. THE FOLLOWING WITNESSES TESTIFIED UNDER OATH: (C&zck appropriale answer)

=

15

NAME (Last, First, A1) GRADE {If any) ORGANIZATiON:’ADDRESS {Whichever is appropriaie) YES | No
' ' - |B Batt, 4-1°° Fielq Artillery ]
ES Baghdad, Irag APO AE 03324 X
B Batt,4-1°' PFPield Artillery
£S5 Baghdad, Iraq APO AE 08324 X
- B Batt, 4-1°% Fieiq Artillery
E4 Baghdad, Irag APO AE 09324 ' X
B Batt, 4-1°% Fisld Artillery
E4 Baghdad, Iraq apro ag 09324 X
- | B Batt, 4-1°F Fieigq Artiliery
E4 Baghdad, Irag AP0 AR 09324 X |
{SEE CONTINUATION SHEET 1)
THE SUBSTANCE OF THE TESTIMONY OF THESE WITNESSES HAS BEEN REDUCED TO WRITING AND 15 ATTACHED.

{3A. THE FOLLOWING STATEMENTS, DOCUMENTS, OR MATTERS WERE CONSIDERED: THE AGCUSED WAS PERMITTED FO

EXAMINE EACH.

DESCRIPTION OF ITEM LOCATION OF ORIGINAL (if rov artached)

3Worn Statements of SGT o Office of the Staff Judge
W itd 21 Jun 03 and 27 Jun 03 Advocate, 1°% Armored Division

3Worn Statements of SGT : Office of the Staff Judge

dtd 21 Jun 03 and 27 Jun 03 {Advocate, 1% Armored Division g4 oX

JWorn Statements of SPC oy Office of the Staff Judge C
{td 21 Jun 03 and 27 Jun 03 Advocate, 1°° Armored Division X.
'Worn Statements of SBC S Office of the Stafrf Judge _
ftd 21 Jun 03 and 27 Jun 03 Advocate, 1°% Armored Division p e
“70rn Statements of sec S Office of the Staff Judge
(. 1 21 Jun 03 and 27 Jun 03 Advocate, 1% Armored Division X
” ) © |Office of the sfaff Judge

-EE CONTINUATION SHEET 1) Advocate, 1°° Armored Division

EACH ITEM CONSIDERED, OR A COPY OR RECITAL OF THE SUBSTANCE OR NATURE THEREGF, 15 ATTAGHED X

- THERE ARE GROUNDS TO BELIEVE THAT THE ACCUSED WAS NOT MENTALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE OFFENSE(S)

OR NOT COMPETENT TG PARTICIPATE iN THE DEFENSE. (Sze R.C.M. 909, 916().}

X
3. THE DEFENSE DID REQUEST OBJECTIONS TO BE NOTED IN THIS REPORT (if Fex, specify in Ttam 27 below.)
3. ALL ESSENTIAL WITNESSES WILL BE AVAILABLE IN THE EVENT OF TRIAL X

7. THE CHARGES AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE IN PROPER FORM X

3. REASONABLE GROUNDS EXIST TO BELIEVE THAT THE ACCUSED COMMITTED THE OFFENSE{S) ALLEGED
(" "M NOT AWARE GF ANY GROUNDS WilicH WOULD DISQUALIFY ME FROM ACTING AS INVESTIGATING OFFICER.

M NOT .
e ROCM. 0S¢ty ) X
). 1 RECOMMEND:
TRIAL BY [ summary M seeciat [] GENERAL COURT-MARTIAL

[ other {Specify in lrem 21 below)

- REMARKS finctude, ax Hecessaiy, explanation for any delays in the in vestigation, and explanation for any "no” answers ahove, }

€asonable grounds to believe that Staff Sergeant John C. McKenzie did in fact

ruelty and maltreatment, be amended to substitute the specification addressed
..n the following Paragraph and also recommend that the specification of Charge

M

FORM OF THE CHARGES.

commit the offehses alleged; however, based upon evidence Presented, I
recommend severagl amendments to the form of the charges and their
specifications. I recommend that Charge I, Violation of Article 93, ycMmJ

I be dismissed for reasons addressed in the second Paragraph of the
{SEE CONTINUATION SHEET 2}

a

- TYPED NAME OF INVESTIGATING OFFICER b GRADE c. QRGANIZATION
HQ, 3™ BCT, 1°¢ ap
pa Baghdad, Irag APO AE 09324 002166




(f“NTINUATION SHEET 1, DD FORM 457

'O AR (09324

Item 12a, continued:

NAME {Ij.a.\'ri First, y5) :

e
S

{tem 13a, continued:

( DESCRIPTION OF ITEM

uorn Statements of prg
-td 21 Jun 03 and 27 Jun 03

iwbrn Statements of pFpC
td 21 Jun 03 and 28 Jun g3

_ ;, PERTAINING TO SSG McKENZIE, John C.,
B Battery, 4® Battalion, 1° Fielq Artillery Regiment, Baghdad,

worn Statements of PFC (NGNS

ltd 21 Jun G3 and 28 Jun 03

'{ rn Statements of SPC :
dtd 21 Jun 03 and

7 Jun 03

‘worn Statements of PFC
ltd 21 Jun 03 and 27 Jun 03

'hotographs (18)

QJ,_

Iraq
GRADE ¢y aly ORGANIZATION/IADDRESS (Whichever iy appropriate YES MO
E3 B Batt, 4-1°t pisld Artillery X
Baghdad, Irag APO AE 09324
E3 B Batt, 4-1°" Field Artillery X
Baghdad, Iragq APC AE 09324
E3 B Batt, 4-1°" Field Artillery X
Baghdad, Irag AP0 AE 09324
E4 . B Batt, 4-1°" Field Artillery X
Baghdad, Irag AP0 AE 09324
Civilian Khalif Baghdad Harthia, House 44 X
Baghdad, Irag '
LOGATION OF ORIGINAL (1f not atiached) YES  NO
‘Office of the Staff Judge Advocate,
1°" Armored Division X
Baghdad, Iragqg _ .
Office of the Staff Judge Advocate,
1%* Armored Division X
Baghdad, Irag
Office of the Staff Judge Advocate,
1% Armored Division X.
Baghdad, Iraq :
Office of the Staff Judge Advocate,.
1°* Armored Division
Baghdad, Iraq X
Office of the Staff Judge Advocate,
1°* Armored Division X
Baghdad, Irag
X
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CONTINUATION SHEET 2, DD FORM 457, PERTAINING TO SSG MCKENZIE, John c.,

S B Battery, 4t Battalion, 1% Field Artillery Regiment, Baghdad,.lraq
APO AE 09324 R | _

em 21, continued.

Dismissed for reasons addressed in the second paragraph of the discussion. T also
recommend that one additional charge, Violation of Article 92, ucMJ, Dereliction in
the Performance of Buties be preferred against Staff Sergeant McKenzie. The Witness

testimony and evidence supporting the charges, recommended amendments, and/or
dismissals are discussed below.

1. Charge I, Violation of Article 83, UCMJ (Cruelty and Maltreatment) .

This paragraph addresses iy recommendation to substitute the specification to
charge I. while I do believe that reasonable grounds ‘exist to believe that Staff
Sergeant McKenzie violated Article 83, UcMg {Cruelty and Maltreatment), I do not
>elieve that he is guilty of the offense as it is stated on the charge sheet. The
specification as it is stated, charges that Staff Sergeant McKenzie was cruel toward

by “laughing at [him] after he was assaulted.and saying to
{k_ml “What happened, did you fall and break your nose?” I do not believe that the
:vidence supports the charge that Staff Sergeant McRenzie was cruel in this manner.
- do not believe that what basically amounted to “teasing” raises to the
-evel of cruelty, Laughing at someone is not a crime and could not
inderstand the words that were being stated regardless. I do not believe that these
tCts could not meet the second element of Article 93.
' ' grounds to charge Staff Sergeant
I do believe that there are
ffense. There is credible

e killed if he accepted the
‘1stol, and two other witnesses, Specialist and Private First Class

testified that they overheard Staff Sergeant McKenzie say “take it so we
an shoot you,” or words to that effect. In addition, a few other witnesses
estified that they believed Staff Sergeant McKenzie would shoot, engage or
barwise harm if he accepted the pistol. By placing in
4 fear of imminent death or bodily harm, he engaged in a type of mental torture
- Y Staff Sergeant McKenzie that I believe would meet the cruelty element cf the

ffense that was subject to the orders of the accused. The victim was a
etainee and had to obey the orders of his detainer. Staff Sergeant McRenzie was the
enior ranking individual at the scene, so was subject to his orders.

Although I do not believe that the statement “what happened, dig you fall and
reak your nose?” rises to the level of cruelty by itself, I do believe that the
tatement may be indicative of some other type of physical maltreatment of

by someone in the group. I believe that he may have made the statement to
rovide an explanation for physical signs of maltreatment on the victim., However, 1
> not believe that there is sufficient evidence to suggest that Staff Sergeant
CKenzie himself inflicted this damage.

Charge II, Violatien of Article 128, UCMJ (Assault with a Dangerous Weapon)

(@w: This paragraph addresses my reasonable belief to that Charge II, Violation of
~ticle 128, UCMJ, Assault with a Dangerous Weapon, is in proper form, that all the
-GMents required to substantiate the charge have been met, and that credible
itness testimony and sworn statements support the charge,

(SEE CONTINUATION SHEET 3) 002168



- B Battery, 4™ Battalion, 1% Field Artillery Regiment, Baghdad, Iraq !
APO AE 09324 - : '

(’ftem 21, continued.. .
& sequence of events based upon the evidence gathered shows that the actions,
-aich are the basis of Charge II, took place sometime after the detainment of
cutside the building he was guarding, but prior to the incident where ;
struck him in the face. '
Besides it is believed that there were only five other soldiers
at the scene;’ Staff Sergeant McKenzie, i G
and _ - A written statemen
and oral testimony by and a written statement by '
both credible witnesses at the scene, claim they saw Staff Sergeant
McKenzie and another soldier taunting by instructing him to lower and
raise his head. Both witnesses observed Staff Sergeant McKenzie pull back the
charging handle of his M16A2 rifle presumably to chamber a round into the chamber of
his rifle and then aim his rifle at a distance of 6-12 inches away from

Another credible witness, » Stated that he did see
Staff Sergeant McKenzie aim his MI6A2 at ¢ but did not see him charge the
deapon. ‘also a credible witness,. did not recall having seen Staff
3€_geant McKenzie aim his weapon at however, it is reasonable to

>elieve that who was Standing twenty to thirty feet away from the
letainee, may have beeon

lstracted momentarily as Staff Sergeant McKenzie aimed his
rifle at '

Although I do- not believe to be a credible witness
n this cas I would like to acknowledge his testimony that he and another soldier
‘badgered”b and told him to keep his head down. When questioned by the
{gfense-counsel, stated that he trained his weapon on

* accused when he did not obey “our” command to keep his head down. - The evidence
w«d testimony leads me to believe that the other soldier was Staff Sergeant

Kenzie . )
There are other credible witnesses who dig not recall having seen Staff
)ergeant McKenzie aim his weapon at . I believe that this discrepancy in

'redible witness testimony can be explained by a lack of personal knowledge of the
wwents. The above-mentioned witnesses lack of knowledge can be explained by the
‘act that they were still in the process of searching nearby buildings or en’route
0 the site where the incident took place,

s Recommended Charge, Violation of Article 92, UCMT (Dereliction in the Performance

e(;)uties).

oldier, ] , had wrongfully assaulted , in
iolation of UCMJ, Article 92. Six witnesses whose testimony I consider to be
redible testified that after had struck

nd nose, Staff Sergeant McKenzie took no action whatsoever to correct or restrain
instead he joked about the incident. According to the

Cccounts of several witnesses, was at no time perceived a threat and he

esponded fully to the orders of the soldiers detaining him. After the incident

ccurred, Staff Sergeant McKenzie failed to report this incident to his superiors,

= he should have. Instead, it was the soldiers who observed the incident who
ormed the battery first sergeant of what had happened. During the hearing,

Stated that soldiers within the battery had received Rules of

gagement {RORE) training prior to deploying to Iraqg.

{SEE CONTINUATION SHEET 4}
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L B Battery, 4°® Battalion, 1% Field Artillery Regiment, Baghdad, Iraq
APO AE 08324 ' -

(ﬁ em 21, continued.

. Because of this, I recommend that Staff Sergeant McKenzie be additionally
~1arged for the violation of.Article 92, ycmMmJ (Dereliction of buty).

iI. FINDINGS FROM WITNESS TESTIMONY.

Of the 10 soldier witnesses who had pPreviocusly submitted sworn statements about
the events of 21 June 2003, I found only 8 to be credible. T found the testimony of

respective oral testimonies were generally

onsistent with theijr pPreviously submitted sworn statements. The oral testimony
iid; however, tend to provide more illustrative detail of the events than did their
3worn statements. _ ' _ .

The testimony of the alleged victim in this case, seemed to be
*redible and was consistent for the most part with the testimony of the other
ftfnesses. I will say however, that it appeared as if he exaggerated the events at

txds. _
rind the testimony of QUGG and SN
Lo be credible or convincing.

I did no

acknowledged that the details in his first sworn
statement were false. 1In this statement, he claimed to have seen nothing, but as
the written and oral stestimony of others would show, he was at or near every event

‘elated to Staff Sergeant McKenzie’s alleged misconduct. I also have little reason
0 believe second sworn statement and oral testimony
(D:ause the reccllection of events he described did not resemble in any consistent

“ushion those presented by the other eight witnesses.
With regard to the testimony provided by
Lrong belief that the may have in fact violated Article 131 of the UCMJ by
ommitting perjury during his examination in this Article 32 hearing. During his
ral testimony, I questioned about having seen Staff
ergeant McKenzie during the incident. He denied having seen Staff Sergeant
CKenzie at all until after he left the scene where the assault took place. This
estimony conflicts with written statement
cknowledging that Staff Sergeant McKenzie was
ire of the incident were He struck
Cif I would like to state that was not a cooperative
itness during the course of the investigation, it came Lo my attention that—
had agreed to testify truthfully about this incident in
xchange for disposition of his case with an Article 15. It is my belief that he
id not live up to his part of the bargain. He did not provide truthful and
Ccurate testimony against or in Support of Staff Sergeant McKenzie as agreed to in
e Memorandum of Agreement. In light of this, I believe that

“voided the agreement _and recommend that formal action should be taken
satns: U

IT. RECOMMENDATION AS TO DISPOSITION

I have a

Disposition. I recommend that this case be referred to a special court-martial
ipowered to adjudge a bad conduct discharge. These are serious crimes, which have
"~ possibility of adversely affecting the image of the United States Army, and if

(Q“is found guilty of these crimes at the court-martial, they are crimes worthy of a
mitive discharge. I believe that this level of disposition is appropriate to both
inish Staff Sergeant McKenzie and to deter other soldiers from engaging in this
/Pe of misconduct. Aware the chain of command, including yourself, recommend a
neral court-martial in this case, I believe that a special court-martial

(SEE CONTINUATION SHEET 5) - 002170
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CONTINUATION SHEET -5, DD FORM 457, PERTAINING TO S8SG McKENZIE, John C.,

o _ . B Battery, 4*® Battalion, 1% Field Artillery Regiment, Baghdad,. Irag
(" "0 AE 09324 : :

Ttem 21, continued,

service record.

Summary. I recommend that you send the following chargés to the 15t Armored Division
Commanding General, with a recommendation for referral to a'special_court~maxtial
smpowered to adjudge a bad-conduct discharge:

1. Charge I, The Specification: Violation of the UCMJ, Article 93.

I recommend that this charge be modified to reflect the acts, which could be
considered to be cruel. '

2 Charge IXI, The Specification: Violation of the UCMJ, Article 128,

Additional Charge I, The Specification: Violation of the UCMJ, Article 92.

I recommend that this charge be added, because the evidence provided reasonable
jrounds to believe that Staff Sergeant McKenzie was derelict.

]

C
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SUMMARIZED RlECORD OF ARTfCLE 32b INVESTIGATION

PERSONS PRESENT

, MA] W [ vestigating Officer

CPT Government Representative
, Defense Counsel

PERSONS ABSENT

None.

The Article 32b Investigati.on convened at 0900 hours, 22 October 2003.

The Investigating Officer informed the accused that this was a formal investigation of the charges against
him ordered pursuant to Article 32b of the UCMJ by CO special court-martial convening
authority, :

The Investigating Officer stated that he had previously informed the accused of his rights regarding counsel
and that the accused indicated to him that he did wish to be represented by CPT (I detai fed-
defense counsel, who was present with the accused. :

The Investigating Officer stated that Majo was assigned as his primary legal advisor on
30 September 2003, but on 21 October 2003 that Captain was appointed as his legal

advisor replacing Major

The Investigating Officer advised the accused that the sole purpose of the Article 32b Investigation was to
determine thoroughly and impartially all the relevant facts of the case. To weigh and evaluate thoge facts
and determine the truth of the matter set on the charges and make a recommendation concerning disposition
of the charges preferred against him. : :

The Defense Counsel waived the reading of the charges.

The Investigating Officer advised the accused of his right to remain silent concerning the offenses, of the

right to make a sworn or unsworn statement, and that such a statement could be used against him in a trial
by court-martial, The Investigating Officer further informed the accused of his right to present matters in
defense, extenuation and mitigation, and that anything presented by the accused would be considered and
weighed as evidence just as the testimony of any witness,

The Investigating Officer stated that the accused had been previously given a copy of the investigative file,
which has been compiled in the case. The Tnvestigating Officer listed the items contained in the

" investigative file,

The Defense attorney requested that the Investigating Officer allow counsel to review the charge sheet
furnished to him. There being no objection by the Government Representative, the lnvestigating Officer
allowed the Defense Counsel to review his copy of the charge sheet.

The Investigating Officer stated that he intended to cali as a witnesses '
. Bravo Battery, 4™ Battalion, 1% Field Artillery Regiment:; Bravo Battery, 4"
Battalion, 1* Field Artillery Regiment; Bravo Battery, 4™ Battalion, 1% Field
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Artillery Regiment; M Bravo Battery, 4™ Battalion, 1* Field Artillery Regiment;
Bravo Battery, 4 Battalion, 1 Field Artillery Regiment:

, Brave Battery, 4™ Battalion, 1% Field Artillery Regiment;

Bravo Battery, 4™ Battalion, 1% Fieid Artillery Regiment;

Bravo Battery, 4" Battalion, 1% Field Artillery Regiment; and

The Investj gating Officer informed the accused that he had the right to cross-examine afi witnesses, which
testify at this hearing, The Investigating Officer further informed the accused-of his right to call witnesses
" on his behaif, . '

The Investigating Officer asked the accused if he had any questions concerning his rights in the
investigation, ' '

The accused stated that he understood his rights in the Article 32b Investigation.

The Investigating Officer stated that would be deemed as reasonably
unavailable due to the witness beirig returned to the United States on environmental leave. There being no

objection from the Defense Counsel or the Government Representative, the Investi gating Officer stated that
he would consider the sworn statement o in his review of the investigation.

The Investigating Officer stated that the Government Representative would swear in the witnesses and the
translator in this investigation. There was no objection from Defense Counsel.

The Defense Counsel performed voir dire on the Investigating officer,

The Government Representative asked both the Defense Counsel and the Investigating Officer if they were

The Government Representative made an opening statement,
The Defense Counsel made an opening statement,

The Investigating Officer also stated that currently wouid not
be called as a witness due to the fact that the soldier has legal counse! and his counsel has advised him not

to testify at this investigation at the present time. The Government Representative informed ali patties that

' “would only testify if an agreement was reached between the witness, his
counsel, the Government Representative, and the Special court-martial convening authority. There was no
objection from Defense Counsel. '

QU =5 calicd o 2 translator for QR @ .. ..o, o
translated the testimony of the witness.

Baghdad Harthia, House 44, was called as a witness for the government,
was sworn, and testified through an interpreter in substance as foilows:

QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE

My name is [ prefer to be called I was guarding a buiidin
p ¢ 24

youth of Iraq or as a health center for the Iraqi people. Me and one other man normally guard the building.
f forgot the date that American forces came to the building and did a search of its interior. 1 do remember
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that the date the American forces came to the building that I guard was in June. On the day the American
forces came, 1 was the only guard at the building, o '

QUESTIONS BY THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER
I was the only guard at the museum that day, but normally there are two of us,

QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE

t was Jying on-the.couch because jt was a very hot day. [ heard a lot of noises outside, so I got up and went

utside to look and-see where the noise was coming from. 1saw a Jot of American forces and tanks when [ -
went outside. The soldiers started screaming at me to get out of the building, but I did not realize that they
were talking to me at first. At this time, there were two soldiers with their rifles pointed at me. The two
soldiers came in the building and told me to get outside, so 1 came out of the building. They had me {ay
down on the ground so that they could search me. After they had searched me and found nothing, they told
e to get up and sit on a chair while some of the forces moved inside the building. I was not wearing a

. uniform that day when the American forces came 1o the museum because this all happened before we were _

issued uniforms. The soldiers had me sit down against some type of aluminum post as the other soldiers
conducted some type of operation. Five of the soldiers stayed outside and guarded me, while the others

The building | was guarding was a military museum. It had a lot of old weapon systems inside. One of the
soldiers brought a Tevolver pistol out of the building and asked me what it was. [ told the soldier that it was
an old revelver pistol, Later o, one of the soldiers had brought someone that could speak Arabic over and
I'told him that the revolver was an old pistol. I was told that there had been some resistance towards

eyes. L doremember a soldier putting his weapon to my head, but that did not occur until after one of the

_soldiers hit me. Afier the soidiers had searched the building and brought the weapons out of it, [ was then

Let the record show that the witness identified an M16A?2 rifie as being similar to the weapon that had been
placed against his head, '

My nose and mouth started bleeding when the soldier struck me in the face. After the soldiers saw that |
was bleeding from the nose and mouth, they put their weapons on safe and started backing up. The man

remember any of the soldiers laughing, The leader of the soldiers was in the building when I got struck.
When he came out and saw that | was bleeding, he asked the soldiers which one of them had hit me. After

. the leader of the soldiers found out who had hit me, he pulled the soldier to the side and told him to go back

to his area until he had a chance to speak with him later on the incident. The leader of the soldiers is not
present in this room. | was not scared wheq [ was struck in the mouth. [ was more concerned with my

eyes. [ was never hit by my father, mother, or brother, Up until now, most of my friends do not know that
I was hit in the face by an American soldier. _was scared when the soldiers put their Weaponstomy head.
because I was expecting one of them to pull the trigger. 1 have heard of z lot of innocent people getting
killed by mistake and | thought that I was goifig 16 b one of them. I can not remember if any of the
soldiers in the room here, were one of those present when | was assaulted. The only American soldier that
I can recognize is the one who spoke Arabic that befriended me. Most of the time during the incident, my
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&,

head was down or my eyes were closed, 1 cried on the inside because I did not understand why the soldier
had hit me. The only thing that I suffer from right now, because of the incident is ridicule from my friends.
Sometimes when | play with my friends where we hit one another, they tell me that before I hit an Iragi
back, I should go and hit the American soldier back that struck me in the face. 1 lost 50,000 Dinar and
9MM Blanc pistol due to the incident. Iused my pistol the Ametican soldiers took from me only to protect
myself whenever I went out. ’

QUESTIONS BY THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER

'.% soldiers tried to offer me a gun that he had brought out of the museym, The pistol that the

soldier offered me was burnt up.
. - b

Q.UESTIONS BY THE DEFENSE COUNSEL

The soldiers had their guns pointed at me when I was kneeling in front of the museum. When I tried to get
up from the ground, after I had been struck by the soldier; that is when they put their weapons to my head.
I was on my knees while the soldiers had their weapons pointed at me. There were five soldiers with their
weapons pointed at me. The soldier that offered me the gun had a piece of paper in his hand. The soldier
that offered me the weapon knew how to read Arabic. He was asking me who had me guarding the
museum. The soidier was asking me why I was in the museum and what was [ doing there. The soldier
that told me to take the weapon he had in his hand for me was not speaking to me in Arabic. [ thought that
the soldier was trving to hand me the weapon because oldier was putting the weapen out towards me.
T refused taking the weapon from the soldier, because I thought that they would have tried to harm me. The
soldier that offered me the pistol was not speaking in Arabic. After the search, there wore normally two
soldiers guarding me. At times though, there was only one soldier guarding me with his weapon at my
head,

The interpreter demonstrated the distances between the witness and the soldiers guarding him. The
distance was about § feet, = '

QUESTION BY THE INVESTIGATING OF FICER

From the moment the soldiers walkéd.into the museum, I was expecting them to kill me. I thought that if |
took the pistol from the scldier that offered it to me, the others wouid have killed ne,

The Government Representative requested that the Investigating Officer permanently excuse the witness,
because he had come g long way to deliver his testimony. There being no objection by the Defense
Counsel, the Investigating Officer stated that he would permanently excuse the witness.

There being no further questions, the witness was permanently excused and warned not to discuss his
testimony with anyone other than the Government Representative, Defense Counsel, Investigating Officer,
and the Reporter. :

The Government Representative requested a brief recess to link the witness up with his cealition forces
escort sa that he could get back to his residence. There being not argument from Defense Counse, the
Investigating Officer gave all parties a brief recess.

The Article 32b Investigation recessed at 0956 hours, 22 October 2003,

The Article 32b Investigation resumed at 1001 hours, 22 October 2003, with all parties present

. Bravo Battery, 4 Battalion, 1" Field Artillery Regiment, was
called as a witness for the governiment, was sworn, and testified in substance as follows:

002176



The

QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERNMENT REPRESE‘,NTATIVE

to bring out, all the soldiers-were congregating outside the building waiting to go back to our Forward _
Observation Base, The soldiers brought some mortar tubes, AK47s, a hand gun, and some ammunition out
of the building. . -

The Government Representative handed the witness phote 1251,

This is a picture of 2 mortar tube, some AK47s, and a Rocket Propelled Grenade (RPG). These are the
same weapons that | saw the soldiers bring out on 21 June 2003, : :

" The Government Representative handed the witness photo 1265,

This photo shows two old, rusty weapons that look like they have been burned. ] saw weapons that locked
like these when the soidiers had brought them out of the building to turn them in. These locked like one of
the weapons that the accused had brought out of the building. From nty position, it locked like the accused
was gesturing at the detainee in a way that [ooked like he was trying to hand the [ragi detainee a weapon. |
could not understand what the accused and the detainee where saying. | did see

that day. truck the detainee in the face with an open hand, While [ was
guarding the detainee, was talking to another soldier and kept walking around
the detainee. Then
there when he saw

trike the detainee, There was a lot of talking going on after
struck the detainee, but I could not make out what was being said. The accused

. was joking around with some other soldiers by saying that the detainee had tripped and fell on his face. |

did not ever see the accused correct or striking the detainee. The accused

rward Observation Base. The accused is

reported what had happened that day after we wot back to our Fo
- the section chief of! . . In my opinion, the only thing that disturbed me was the
actions of : )

QUESTIONS BY THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER

mained on the scene, but he was not in the immediate area when
truck the accused. 1 was about thirty feet from the accused and the detainee when the incident
took place.

QUESTIONS BY THE DEFENSE COUNSEL

I'was about twenty to thirty feet away from the detainee. My mission, once I got to the scene, was to guard
the detainee. I did not have anything blocking my view from the detainee. I did have my weapon pointed
at the detainee wh ile T was guarding him. The accused did not have his weapon pointed at the detainee at
any time, There was no one blocking the line of sight between myself and the detainee. I could not see
what it was that the accused gesturing towards the detainee with. I could see that the accused had
something in his hand, but I could not see precisely what that object was, The item in the hand of the
accused looked like a burnt up weapon,
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QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE |

There were about five or six other soldiers around the detainee when I was guarding him. There were a lot
of soldiers standing around waiting to go back and some walking around talking. I was the onty soldier
waiching the detaince. :

_ Bravo Battery, 4” Battalion, 1% Ficld Artillery Regiment, was
~ called as z witness for the govemment, was affirmed, and testified in substance as foliows:

QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE |

On 21 June 2003, my unit was inside the Iraq palace, which serves as our unit’s-compound. The Sworn
statements that 1 have previously made were correct and truthful. On 21 June 2003, we were called out as
the Quick Reaction Force because people had been sighted on roofs with AK47s, Once, we got the call for
our Quick Reaction Force, the G vided us up into groups. My task from the

was the rear security. 1 was later sent by the “with my squad on the roof to look for any
suspicious activity or AK47 shell casings. In the beginning, 1 did not see any of the weapons taken from

the building. ' '

QUESTIONS BY INVESTIGATING OFFICER

We did not find any shell casings.

Fl

QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE

I was about ten feet from the The accused was alse present that day. the accused was
about five feet on my left hand side.

The Government Representative handed the witness photo 1265,

This is a picture of a rusted, burnt out revolver. I have seen this ftem before because it looks like the
revolver that the accused was trying to hand the detainee. The accused was talking to the detainee, but I
could not hear him. From his actions, it locked like the accused was taunting the detainee, - Then

approaciied the detainee. While the detainee was sitting on the ground Indian style,

it him in the face causing the detainees head to go back and hit the aluminum

siding. The accused was standing about five feet to the right hand side of
the detainee was struck. 1do believe the accused saw

nterceded to prevent from striking the accused again. 1 did
not hear the aceused correct nor yeil at for what he did. The accused asked the
defainee if he had fallen down and broke his nose. None of the noncommissioned officers said anything to

bout striking the detainee.

trike the detainee.

QUESTION BY THE INVESTING OFFICER

! did not say anything to-oecause I'left it to the accused, who was the section chief of D

o correct him.
QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE
We did receive Rules of Engagement classes prior to deploying to [raq. We did not receive any classes on
the treatment of detainees. The detainee was not offering any type of resistance when
truck him. I do not betieve that ctions were in accordance with the

army’s current operations in Iraq. We are not here to abuse these people. We were sent to liberate them.

QUESTIONS BY THE DEFENSE COUNSEL
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I saw the revolver when the accused was taunting the detainee. I believe he was taunting the detainee

solely because of the motions he was making at him with his hand. The accused did not make any other.

comments about the detainee besides asking the detainee had fell down and broke his nose. The accused

was about five feet, and two the right of the detainee. I was about ten feet in front with-
as right in front of the detaines.

QUESTIONS BY THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER

“The Investigating Officer asked the witness to demonstrate how the accused was wajving the weapon
towards the detainee. There being no objection from the Governiment Representative or the Defense
Counsel, the witness demonstrated how the accused was holding the weapon out at the accused.

To me, it looked like the accused was trying to give the detainee the weapon. .
QUESTIONS BY THE DEFENSE COUNSEL

It is possible that the accu;sed could have been asking the detainee if the pistol was black when it looked
like he was trying to give the detainee the weapon,

QUESTIONS SY THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER

When the accused said that the detainee had fell and broke his nose, he was making the statement to the
detainee

QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERNEMENT RERPRESENTATIVE

The accused did make a statement to the Battery Commander and the— The accused

- informed the Battery Commander andwat he did not know what had happened as far as
*striking the witniess is concemned.

There being no further questions, the witness was temporari ly excused and warned not to discuss his
testimony with anyone other than the Government Representative, Defense Counsel, Investi gating Officer,
and the Reporter.

, Headquarters and Headquarters Company, 2™ Battalion, 70
Armor Regiment, was called as a witness for the government, was sworn, and testified in substance as
follows:

QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE

On 21 June 2003, | was on a QRF mission to the museum. There had supposediy been shots fired towards
one of cur towers and we went out to access the situation, I road to the museum in a 5 ton, We were
clearing the people out of the building, In the building that I cleared, there were a couple of AK7s, some
passports, and about four people. We took the detainees from the building that we had searched over to
where was being detained. We had the detainees from the building my team searched
separate froi My job was to guard the detainees that we got out of the electrical
compound. We had the three detainees from the electrical compound separate from the other detainee.

The Government Representative showed the witness photo 0009,

I do not recognize the individual in the photo. saw~guarding the detainee that was there
when | arrived,

The Government Repz‘eéentative showed the witness photo 1265,
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It looks like the weapon that I sav Ol - oo 2nd put up to the head of the
detainee and yell bang. 1saw the accused in the general area. The accused took the hand gun from

and walked over to the detainee. It looked like the accused could see everything that
was going on. When the accused took the weapon from it looked like the

accused was holding the weapon by the barrel and was waiving it towards the detainee. The accused was
telling the detainee to go ahead and take the weapon,

The Government Represenfative handed the witness a2 9MM to show how the accused was holding the
weapon on the day of the incident. There being no argument from Defense Counsel, the Investigating
Officer allowed the witness to demonstrate how the accused was holding the weapon,

Yes, emotions were running high that day. You could say that some of the soldiers were angry atQie
. After the incidents of this day, there was some incident involving the detainee on another

occasion. 1 did not actually see it the detainee, but 1 did hear the detainee’s
-head hit the aluminum siding. I did not hear the accused say anything to correct

' The accused was the senior noncommissioned officer in the immediate area. 1 saw that the
detainee was bleeding, Once the detainee was hit, the soldiers that had been giving him a hard time
dispersed.' One of the soldiers came up and gave the detainee a rag to clean his face. The accused had his

- M16A2 that day. I saw the accused near the detainee with his weapon pointed at him. The weapon of the
accused was siung over his shoulder at first. Then the accused took his weapon off of his shoulder and
leveled it at the detainee. Then the accused charged his weapon and pointed it at the detaines again. 1 was
on the wrong side of the accused to see if he moved his selector switch from safe to semi. It locked liked
the detainee was tryin g to comply with the dernands of the soldiers standing around him. The dstaines was
aware of the accused pointing his weapon at him. It did not look like the accused was trying to guard the
detainee. 1t looked like the accused was trying to threaten the detainee to me because there was no nesd for
the accused to guard the detainee with as guarding the detainee the entire
time that 1 was there, | thought the accused was angry at the detainee because of a rumor [ had heard
involving a previous incident where it was sai{ that the detainee had been shooting at our compound, I do
not know whether or rot this rumor was ever verified.

QUESTIONS BY THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER

1 did see the accused charge his weapon. The weapon status is red whenever you leave our compound,
Normally, we would stay amber until we were either told to put our weapons in red status, or if we felt we
were in danger. We normally wait untii we are told to put our weapon in red status before we actually do it
because of safety reasons. There have been a lot of accidental discharges in cur Battalion.

QUESTIONS BY THE DEFENSE COUNSEL

Fam in second platoon and the accused is in first platoon. 1 am not in the same platoon as the accused. 1
was referring to my platoon when I said that we normally leave the Forward Observation Base in amber
status. My mission on 21 June 2003 was to guard four other detainees. 1 would say that the accused and
aunted the detainee for about three to five minutes. | did not see the entire
incident, because I was not always watching the detainee that was guarding. 1 saw the
accused pointing his weapon at the detainee before truck him. 1 did not hear
the accused say anything else to the detainee besides, “Here. Take it”. It is possible that the accused was
saying other things to the detainee that 1 could not hear. I was standing about fifteen to twent meters away
from the detainee which as guarding. | remembe was
present when the accused pointed his weapon at the detainee. [ am pretty sure that other soldiers were
around, but I can not remember their names, nd were around
when the accused pointed his weapon at the detainee. I was in front of the electrical building when the
accused was offering the weapon to the detainee. The accused had his back towards me when he was
waving the weapon at the detainee. There were some people that were saying that it was messed up that
ad hit the detainee while others were laughing. 1do not remember seeing the
accused after the detainee had gotten hit. T did not hear the accused say anything about the incident where

hit the detainee,
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- On 21 June 2003, I was on a recon for a possible raid the fi

* QUESTIONS BY THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER

I cannot remember when threw his Kevlar down. 1 remember someone telling
him to go to the vehicle that had brought him to the site so that he could cool off.

QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE

I saw the accused charge his weapon well after the area had been secured. There would have been no
reason for him to move his weapon to.red-status at the point where I heard him charge his weapon.
. o

There being no further questions, the witness was temporarily excused and warned not to discuss his
testimony with anyone other than the Government Representative, Defense Counsel, Investigating Officer,
and the Reporter.

The Article 32b Investigation recessed at | 100 hours, 22 October 2003.

The Article 32b Investigation resumed at 1110 hours, 22 October 2003, with all parties present.

Bravo Battery, 4" Battalion, 1* Field Artillery Regiment, was _

called as a witness for the govemment, was sworn, and testified in substance as follows:

QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE
rst part of the day. Around mid afiernoon when
old us that someone was firing at the tower
from a roof. Myself, R , his driver, and several other soldiers went out
as the Quick Reaction orce. We sat back about a block from the building until the rest of the group
showed up. Once the others arrived, we all moved into position. Th clled at the individual
we saw standing in the building. old the individual to come out of the building with his
hands up twice, before the Iraqi complied. At this point, groups started to go in and clear the building.

W€ were returning to our compound,

The Government Representative showed the witness photo 0009.

This is the photo of the Iraqgi that was standing in the doarway when we arrived on the scene, We found an
AK47 in one of the first rooms that we cleared. We also found some old melted handguns in the building
as we cleared the building, After the building was cleared, I proceeded down the street to go get some

- water from Bravo 7.

The Government Representative showed the witness photo 1205,

‘This is a photo of two of the pistols we retrieved from the building. We were told to take these revolvers
out of the building and place them out to the gate. At first, 1 did not see anyone pick up the pistols. 1 jater
heard someone tell the detainee, “Here Take it” referring to one of the handguns that we had taken out of
the building. When I turnad around to see who it was, it was the accused. | ceuld not remember exactly
how the accused was trying to give the weapon to the detainee. The accused tried about two or three times
to give the weapon to the detainee. Givin Weapons to a detainee is not a part of our unit Standard
Operating Procedute (SOP), *yalked up to the detainee and asked him had he
been shooting at our guard tower. That is when it the detainee in the face,
The detairee that | am referring to is the one in the photo marked 0009. When

hit the detainee in the face, it caused the back of his head to hit the aluminum building he was sitting
against. When went back to try and hit the detainee again, | got in front of him,
pushed him back, and told him that he needed to go cool down. The accused was present to witness this.
The accused did not correc None of the noncommissioned officers tried to
correct I heard someone laughing and saying in a joking manner that the
detainee had fell and broke his nose when | was walking away. The accused was the soldier that made the
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coinment. [ ﬁ?aiked back up to the building and told the*that I was ashamed of wearing the
American patch if soldiers were going to treat the Iragis the way that the accused and '

then went and asked the detainee what had happened. The detainee told the
ad hit him and busted his nose. The accused did not report
tam not aware of the accused making a statement about the incident.

the incident to the

QUESTION BY THE FNVESTIQATING QOFFICER
The accused made the statement that the detainee had fell and broke his nose while :
was laughing. 1 was about five or ten feet from the accused and the detainee when the comment
was made. [ was about five t¢ ten feet from the accused. -

QUESTIONS BY THE DEFENSE COUNSEL

When I heard the words, “Here. Take it.”, other things could have been being said at the same time. It is

- €asy Lo understand the dialect of the accused once you have been around him for a while. The accused has

a thick accent. When the accused said, “what did he do, fall down” it sounded more sarcastic than funny to
me. was laughing when the accused made the comment,
aid something, but I could not hear what it was he said. There were other people around, but |

can not remember what and if they were saying things as well. The first time I heard the accused say,

£

‘Here take it” [ was not facing him. The second time the accused said it I was facing him.

QUESTIONS BY THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER

The accused was the hi ghest ranking person in the immediate area,
QUESTIONS BY THE DEFENSE COUNSEL
I saw ‘strike the detainee.. The accused was. beside the guard shack where the
detainee was sitting on a cement ledge. I was not watching the actions of the accused when
struck the accused. It is possible that the accused did not see the incident, ] did not see
whether or not the accused saw strike the detainee. During the time period

when I thought that the accused was offering the detainee a weapoen, I could not remember who else was
around, but there were other soldiers around. -

QUESTIONS BY INVESTIGATING OFFICER

I did not see the accused point a weapon at the detainee. We were at red status during this incident, I did
not hear nor see anyone charge a weapon.

QUESTIONS BY GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE
The first thing I saw when [ came out of the building was the accused trying to hand the detainee a pistol.

There being no further questions, the witness was temporarily excused and warned not to discuss his

testimony with anyone other than the Governinent Representative, Defense Counsel, Investigating Officer,
and the Reporter. '

Bravo Battery, 4™ Battalion, 1% Field Artiilery Regiment, was
called as a witness for the government, he was sworn, and testified in substance as follows:

QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERNMENT REPRBSENTATIVE
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I am assigned to Bravo Battery, 4% Battalion, 1* Field Artillery Regiment. This is the same unit 1 was
assigned to on21 June 2003. On 21 J une 2003, I was part of the Quick Reaction Force which responded to
the museum. We arrived at the' building located across the street from our Forward Observation Base.
There-was an Iragi citizen coming out of the building with his hands up when we arrived to the building,
Some of the other soldiers involved in the QRF mission detained the civilian.

The Government Representative showed the witness photo 0009,

That is the individual that we had detained and-put over near the guard shack. Once we brought the
individual gut, a few of us went inside the-building to clear it. , and 1 found a sujtcase
full of burnt up pistols inside the museum. The weapons looked tike burnt up revolvers to me,

The Government Representative showed the witness 1265,

This is a photo of the weapons that we brought out of the building. When we brought the weapons out, we
put them on the ground beside us. The accused then grabbed one of the weapons and walked over to the
detainee. The accused asked the detainee had he seen the weapons before. After that, the accused then
tried to give the weapon to the detainee. The accused had told hat if the detainee tried to grab the
weapon, they were to shoot him. The accused offered the detainee the weapon two or three times, The

- detainee kept shaking his head no when the accused was offering him the weapon. The accused gave

then walked over to the detainee and
tried to get him to take it, hen put the weapon down and walked up to the -
detainee and slapped him in the face. When ] truck the detainee, his head went
through the thin aliminum of the guard shack, which caused his nose to bleed. That is when the

came out and asked who struck the detainee. The accused was three or four feet from the detajnee
and F was behind the accused. The accused did not try fo stop~

om slapping the detainee. I did not see the acoused try to correct_ :
The accused saw, strike the detainee. There were a lot of us that went
and report the incident to the I could not see the accused and the detainee from inside the

building.

he weapon,

QUESTIONS BY THE INVESTIGATING OFF ICER

I did hear laughing after the victim was stapped. The accused anc-were laughing and saying that
the detainee had feel and broke his nose. | heard ay that the reason the detainee’s nose was
bleeding was because he had fallen. I did hear the accused male the same statermnent,

QUESTIONS BY THE DERENSE COUNSEL

as the first person that I heard say that the detainee had fel| and broke his
nose. The accused repeated the statement tha had made. It sounded iike the
accused made the comment in a jokingly manner to me. Iam in the section of the accused. The accused is

was trying to give the detainee 2 weapon by his actions and his words. He had told us that if the detainee
took the weapon, then we were to shoot him. The first thing [ remember the accused telling the detainee
‘was whether or not he had seen the weapons before.

QUESTIONS BY THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER

I did not see nor hear anyone charge their weapon. The weapons should have already been charged prior to
leaving the Forward Observation Base. 1 did see the accused point his weapon at the detainee, but it was
the standard way we use when we are guarding detainees. [ did not see the accused point his weapon at the
detainee any differently than we normally do.

QUESTIONS BY THE DEFENSE COUNSEL
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When [ saw the accused frying to hand the weapon to the detainee, the accused was on the right hand side
of the detainee. The M16A2 of the accused was shung on his shoulder and lowered in the direction of the
detainee, but not directly at him.

Therebeing no further questions, the witness was temporarily excused and warned not to discuss his
-testimony with anyone other than the Government Representative, Defense Counsel, Investigating Officer,
and the Reporter, '

The Government Representative informed a] parties that after the testimony of 4l

he intended to cal] to deliver testimony. The Govermnment '
Representative further stated that a deal had been reached betweefhhis counsel,
the government, and the special court-martial convening authority,

o » Hawk Troop, 1¥ Cavalry Regiment, was
called as a witness for the defense, he was sworn, and testified in substance as follows:

QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE
I did make a statement t0~nd to CID. Both of these statements were truthful,

The Government Representative stated that since the witness is offering cumulative evidence he would
submit his sworn statement into the record in the place of testimony. The Defense Counsel objected to
substituting the witness’s sworn statements into the record instead of his verbal testimony since the witness
was available for live testimony. Investigating Officer ruled that the witness’ sworn statements would not

substitute in the recard for his five testimony.

The Government Representative showed the witness 0009.

This is a picture of the detainee in the area across the street from the museum. I was locking down the

street from the museum because | was pulling security. I remember
and near the individual being detained, | happened to turn around for a minute when | saw

the detainee, as saying that
was messed up. One of the NCOs started rendering aid to the Iraq for his nose bleed. We al] taiked about
the incident tater on with our chief, but that was after the incident, triking the detainee is ail

that I can remember about that day. We were in the area for about two hours. | never saw the detainee
again afler that,

QUESTIONS BY THE DEFENSE COUNSEL

I was involved with clearing the efectrical building. Ido not remember any detainees being taken out of the
electrical building. 1 saw trike the detainee when I turned around. tdonot
know what the accused was doing when truck the detainee. | saw the accused
in the corner of my eves well enough to know that he knew what was going on,

QUESTION BY THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER

002184



I did not see the accused react to the incident in any way. I can not recal] any laughing or joking.
QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVB

There were a lot of people in the building that I cleared that day. 1 believe ' was one of
the soldiers in the building that I was helping to clear. 1did not heat anyone making comments on why the
detainee was bleeding, '

“ There being no further questions, the witness-was temporarily excused and warned not to discuss his _
testimony with anyone other than the Government Representative, Defense Counsel, Investigating Officer,
and the Reporter, '

_ , . Bravo Battery, 4" Battalion, 1* Field
Artillery Regiment, was called as 2 witness for the government, he was swom, and testified in sy bstance as
follows: '

Government Representative stated that there is an-agreement between the witness, his counsel, the
Government, and the Special court-martial convening authority.

The Government Representative furnished a copy of the agreement to the Investi gating officer.

QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE

The Government Representative showed the witness photo 1265.

One of the weapons in this photograph is the weapon that I found in the building. The top pistol looks like

the one that I had found in the building. I know that it was the top one that | found in the building because
I had been the one to carry it outside.

The Government Representative showed the witness photo 0609,

about his family and his soldiers. Any problems that I have had with my family since arriving to Fort
Riley; the accused has helped me resolve them. The accused tells me when f am doing wrong as welf.

The Government Representative asked the witness was he invoking his right to remain silent on questions
about his possible misconduct. The witness stated that he was invoking his right to remain silent on any
1ssues involving him. The witness stated that his attorney advised him net to discuss anything about his
possible misconduct,

AN
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I do not remember seeing the accused take any action against the detainee. 1 did not see the accused with
the detainee at all. The accused did not tatk to me about anything that he may have said or done to the

* detainee,

QUESTIONS BY THE INVESTIGATING OFFIGER

I'went in the building with and I can not remember if we
all came out of the bui 1ding together because we were all taking out the burnt up weapons. I do remember
seein when I came outside. as walking from the other side of the
building when 1 saw him. as the only one out there guarding the detainee.

QUESTIONS BY THE DEFENSE COUNSEL

QUESTIONS BY THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER
When we rolled in to the area on the Quick Reaction Force mission, I did not see the accused until we left,

There being no further questions, the witness was permanently excused and warned not to discuss his
testimony with anyone other than the Government Representative, Defense Counsel, Investigating Officer,
and the Reporter. : : '

13 mp Detachment CID, was called as a
witness for the government, he was sworn, and testified in substance as follows:

QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERN MENT REPRESENTATIVE
1 am carrently assigned to Bravo Battery, 4% Battalion, 1st Field Artillery Regiment, | was part of the
Quick Reaction Force on 21 October 2003 My first statement was false in that I told the commander that
had not seen anything, My second sworn statement was truthfisl, When we arrived, the Iragi National was
already detained. I can not remember who I arrived on the scene with, C

The Government Representative showed the witness photo 0009,

. This is a photo of an Iraqi National. 1 really do not recognize him. 1 searched the power plant with( D

, and I can not remember the rest of the people involved. 1 do not remember where the
accused was at that time. When we came out and walked over by the detainee, we were badgering him and
telling him to keep his head down. I asked could | kick the detainee because he had been
shooting at our compound. We were mad because the intelligence we were given said that our tower was
getting shot at from the building that the detainee was taken from,

QUESTIONS BY THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER
Cur intelligence said that our compound was being shot at from the building that the detainee was found in.
QUESTIONS BY THE GOVERNMENT RERESENTATIVE
I i-ecognized .:he detainee from a previous QRF mission that we had been calied out on previously. My

reaction to the accused slapping the Iraqi was laughter. Someone did give the detainee a rag to wipe his
nose. I do not recall the accused saying anything to NN < thc incident I said
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that I did not see anything and that the 'Ir'aqi_ must have fell. After that, I walked away from the incide.nt.
After ﬂhad slapped the detainee, he walked away. -

QUESTIONS BY INVESTIGATING OFFICER

The detainee had a nonchalant or arrogant look. When we told him to put his head down, he would Iift his
head and start looking at us. I know that the detainee could not speak English, but we demonstrated how
we wanted him to put his head down. The accused and | are in the same platoon, but he is not my
supervisor. Some people like him and some don’t because ke speaks the truth. When he speaks the truth,
other people sometimes have a problem with that, ' o

QUESTIONS BY THE DEFENSE COUNSEL

I had my weapon trained on the detainee when he was not obeying our command to keep his head down. 1
do not remember who else had their weapons trained on the detainee. Both myself and ad

- our weapons trained on the detainee. | do not remember who approached the accused and told him that his

soldier, was out of line. Someocne then said that the iragi must have fetl down
in a surprised tone of voice. Id id not see the accused near the detainee. When

hit the detainee, the accused was not around. I was on the detainee’s left. The accused was at least ten feet
away when hit the detainee.

QUESTIONS BY THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER

I do not know who was in charge du'ring the incident. If there had been a preblem, the accused would have

~ been the person that I would have went to for guidance,

There being no further questions, the witness was temporarily excused and warned not to discuss his -
testimony with anyone other than the Government Representative, Defense Counsel, Investigating Officer,
and the Reporter.

P : Bravo Battery, 4" Battalion, 1 Field Artillery Regiment, was
called as a witnegs for the government, he was sworn, and testified in substance as follows:

QUESTIONS BY THE DEFENSE COUNSEL

On 21 June 2003, that was when 1 was one of the guys called out on Quick Reaction Force.” We were
moved across the street from the palace, because one of our towers had gotten shot at. We cleared the
power plant and moved all of the workers out of the building so that we could search it. | believe that there
were thre¢ or four AK47s taken out of the building. Myself and another soldier were sent out to pull
perimeter detail. 1 did not have any personal interaction with the accused. [ did not see the accused interact
with the detainee. When [ saw the accused, he was about ten feet from the detainee. 1do remember that

had his weapon pointed at the detainee. 1 can not remember to well who was there, but |
remember a lot of soldiers were present. 1 do not remember the accused having anything in his hands. The
accused had his M16A2 slung over his soldier. I did not see the detainee get assaulted. 1 gave the detainee
the brown rag which I had in my Kevlar to wipe the blood from his nose,

QUESTIONS BY INVESTIGATING OFFICER
I can not recall if the laughter was before or after | gave the Detainee my rag. When | walked by the

detainee, he was looking pretty normal as he was sitting on the curve with his hands behind his head. No
one else had offered assistance to the detainee.
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* June 2003; and photographs marked as numbers 000-001 » 000-002, 000
- 000-009, 000-010, 000-012, DSN1251, DSNI255, DSN1258, DSN1260, DSN1263, D3N1268, DSN1269,
D8N299, DSN1301, :

There being no further questions, the witness was témporari]_y excused and warned not to discuss his

testimony with anyone other than the Government Representative, Defense Counsel, Investigating Officer,

and the Reporter,

The Government Representative made a closing argument.

The Defense Counse! made a closing argument.

The Investigating Officer stated that he would be considering'the Sworn Statements of —
ade on 21 June 2003 and 27 June 2003; the Sworn Statements o ade

“on 21 June 2603 and 27 June 2003; the Sworn Statements of| made on 21 -

- June 2003 and 27 june 2003; the Sworn Statements of} ade on 2] June 2003
and 27 June 2003; the Sworn Statements of N @hade on 21 June 2003 and 27 June
2003; the Sworn Statements of! ade on 21 June 2003 and 27
June 2003; the Sworn Statements o ' ade on 21 June 2003
and 28 June 2003; the Sworn Statements of T T ade on 21 June
2003 and 28 June 2003; the Sworn Statements o R o ade on 21 June 2003 and

ade on 21 June 2003 and 27
-003, 000-004, 000-006, 000-008,

The Defense Counsel restated his objection to consider the Sworn Statements of soldiers that have testified
at the investigation. The Investigating Officer noted Defense Counsel’s objection for the record.

The Article 32b Investigation adjourned at 1525 hours, 22 Qctober 2003
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'CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the enclosed 16 page Article 32b Investigation transcript in the case of US v. SSG
McKENZIE, John C.. , Bravo Battery, 4" Battalion, 1% Field Artillery Regiment, is a true and
summarized copy of proceedings at the Article 32b Investigation held on 22 October 2003 at the 3™
Brigade Combat Team Forward Observation Base, Baghdad, Iraq. [ certify the accuracy of this transeript as
the Investigating Officer of the hearing, '

MAJ, Ob
Investigating Officer
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UNITED STATES

vs. _ : .
_ SERVICE OF DOCUMENTS
SSG John C. McKenzie
- O N ACCUSED
B Btry., 4-1 FA
‘Baghdad, Iraq APO AE 09324

1. The following document was served on the accused located in Baghdad, Iraq:

Referred Charge Sheet

2. Service was accomplished at _ /% My sk yr __,2003.

3. Unit commander is to insure that the soldier signs this document and return this
Page back to the Military Justice Cell located at the 33 Brigade Combat Team TOC.

Receipt acknowledged.

Signature
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COURT-MARTIAL CHA?GES TRANSMITTAL FORM

PART {

TO:

Court-Martial charges against the followin

DATE:
ZOSer
g named individuat are forwarded as Enclosure 1. Witness

Bravo Battery, 4™ Battalion, 1* Field Artillery

statements, any evidence of previous misconduct {to include properly certified DA Forms 2627 and the
accused's DA Form 2A and 2-1) are attached as Enclosure 2. Soldier is not pending chapfer action UP
AR 635-200.

NAME: RANK: SSN:

John C, McKenzie SSG

UNIT:

Regiment

.} Recommend: : )
{ ) Summary Court-Martial .

{) BCD Special Court-Martial

{ ) Special Court-Martial
P4, Generai Court-Martial

{ ) Other _ _
NAME OF COMMANDER SIGNATURE OF COMMANDER
| | PART
TO: FROM: ' DATE:
S——— . Y 10 5€P03

! have reviewed the attached charges, do
{ ) Summary Court-Martial

{ ) BCD Speciat Court-Martial
{ ) Other

cuments, and Arlicle 32 (if appiicable

) and (recommend){direct);
{ ) Special Court-Martial :

' M General Court-Martial

NAME OF COMMANDER

B

E OF COMMANDER

PART Hi

TO:
BG Martin E. Dempsey

-FROM'I '

DATE:

} have reviewed the attached cha
{ ) Summary Court-Martial

{ YBCD Special Court-Martial
{ ) Other

rges, documents, and Article 32 (if ap

plicable) and (recommend) {(direct}:

{ ) Special Court-Martial

{ )} Generaf Court-Martiai

NAME OF COMMANDER

L N

SIGNATURE OF COMMANDER
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| COURT-MARTIAL CHARGES TRANSMITTAL FORM
1 PART! ' '
TO: T - . DATE:
| '  2OSEP @3
ourt-Martial charges against the following named individual are forwarded as Enclosure 1. Witness
statements, any evidence of previous misconduct (to include properly certified DA Forms 2627 and the.
accused's DA Form 2A and 2-1) are attached as Enclosure 2. Scidier is not pending chapter action UP
AR 835-200. . _
NANE: RANK: T ssN:
John C. McKenzis . . 88G
UNIT: _
Bravo Battery, 4" Battalion, 1% Field Artillery Regiment
Recommend: . o
( ) Summary Court-Martial { ) Special Court-Martial
( { } BCD Special Court-Martial - MGener'al Court-Martial
{ } Other S , _
- § NAME OF COMMANDER SIGNATURE OF COMMANDER
ol n
PART Il
TO:  FROM: DATE:
| _ef——— _ 205kea3
iewed the attached charges, documents, and Article 32 {if applicable) and (recommend){direct):
{ } Summary Court-Martial ~ { ) Special Court-Martial :
( ) BCD Speciatl Court-Martial ¢ General Court-Martial
{ ) Other
NAME OF COMMANDER SIGNATUR
PART I
T0: - | FROM: T DATE:
BG Martin E. Dempsey '
| have reviewed the attached charges, documents, and Article 32 (i applicable} and frecommend)(direct):
( ) Summary Court-Martial { ) Special Court-Martial
( ) BCD Special Court-Martial (4 General Court-Martlal
( ) Other

NAME OF COMMANDER | S!GiiTURE Oi iiiiiiDER
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COURT-MARTIAL RECORD

' NAME AMJHL MEGA/\J M. -SIIOC--
SSN |

ACTIONS CODED: - ASSIGNED TO:
INITIAL _ oav 13 205 PANEL _ L
ACCA ___ -~ EXAM-DIV. = o
FINAL _ NCcACerK of GoueT
COMPANION(S): | _
sS¢
SPe.

RETURN THIS FILE 'ro-
OFFICE OF THE CLERK OF coum N
US ARMY JUDICIARY
- 901 Nom:l-l STUART STREET, SUITE 1200
ARLINGTQN’ VA 22203- 1337

VOL T or IE' _VOL(S)
ADMINISTHATIVE CHECK '

ARMY 20041130

- JALS-CC FORM 24, L OCTOBER. 2000

. 002191
N1 3 205 -



VOL I of III
ORIGINAL COPY
VERBATIM :

RECORD OF TRIAL?Z

(and adcompanying papers)

OF
AMBUHL ; _'Meg;é.n M. o . Specialist
{NAME: Last, First Middie Initial) (Social Security Number) (Rank)
HEC, 16th MP Bde (ABN)
III Coxps : 'Us Army Victory Base, Irag
(unithommgrid Name) _ (Branch of Service)

(Station or Ship)
BY

GENERAT: COURT~MARTIAL

CONVENED BY COMMANDING. GENERAL
(Title of Convening Authority)

Headquarters, III Corps

o (Unit/Command of Convening Authority)
% -
. TRIED AT ¥
Victory Base, Irag/Mannheim ON
{Placel;or Places of Trial)

11, 23 and 25 August 2004
{Date or Dates of Trial)

COMPANION CASES:

|

= .
w2 % o
s
SR T
x = =0
- ¥ om
LA [} Mz
& @ am
= 0 ow
Al¥iedrdocuments
™ 1
=< T

! Insert "verbatim" or shmm‘arized" as appropriate. (This form will be used by the Army and Navy for verbatim records of trial only.) .
? See inside back cover for instructions as to preparation and arrangement.
DD FORM 430, OCT 84

Previous editions are obsolete.
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_ CHRONOLOGY SHEET
inthecaseof: _ J.§ v, Specialist Megan M. Ambuht
{Rank and Name of Accused}

Date of alleged commission of earliest offense tried: __ 23 October 2003
{Enter Date)

Date record forwarded to The Judge Advocate General: z

_ COL, JA, Staff Judge Advocate (‘/U L J" A
)

{Signature and Rank of Staff Jaige Advocate or Legal Officer)

(Enter Date)

" In a case forwarded o the Judge Advocate Action Date Cumulative
General, the staff judge advecate or legal _ 2003 Elapsed
officer is responsible for completion of the Days
Chronology Sheet. Trial counsel should s m — 4
report any authorized deductions and 1. Accused placed under resfraint by military authority - -
reasons for any unusual delays of the case. | 2. Charges preferred {date of affidavit) 13 Jul 04 —
2 Or officer conducting review under Article | 3. Arficle 32 investigation (date of report) ©
B4(2) (MCM, 1984, RCM 1112) 4, Charges received by convening authority 13 Jul 04 ¢
* In computing days between two dates, | 5, Charges referred for trial 21Jul g4 8
disregard first day and count last day. The -
actual number of days in each menth will be | 8. Sentence or acquittal 25 Aug 04 43
counted. Less days:
* Item 1 is not applicable when accused is Accused sick, in hospital or AWOL 0
not restrained, (See MVM, 1984, RCM 304}
or when hefshe is in confinement under a Delay at request of defense 0
sentence or court-martial at time charges are ; I
preferred. ltem 2 will b6 the zero date f tem |02 authorized deduction °
1 is not applicable, 7. Net efapsed days {o sentence or acquittal 43
¢ May not be applicable to trial by special 8. Record received by convening authority
court-martial Action”
! Only this tem may be deducted 9. Record regeived by officer condusting review under

Article €4(a)
* If no further action is required, items 1 At
through 8 will be completed and chronology clion
signed by such convening authonty of hisfher
representative. 4

£

* When further action is requlkd under
Article 84 or service directives.

REMARKS

Investigation of the most serious charge was initiated on 15 January 2004. The Accused was arraigned on
11 August 2004. Total of 209 days. ‘

DD Form 490, OCT 84 Inside of Front Cover
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COURT-MARTIAL DATA SHEET

1. OJAG NUMBER

2. NAME {Last, First, Middle Initial | 3. sOCIAL SECURITY 4. RANK 5, UNIT/COMMAND NAME
AMBUHL, Magen M. i m- SpC HHC, 16th MP Bde (ABN}, III Corps
INSTRUCTIONS

When an item is not applicable to the record of trial being reviewed, mark the proper block with a
diagonal line similar to the ones which appear in the SPCMCA blocks for items 6a and b.

KEY TO USE

TC - Trial Counsel. This column will be
completed in all cases in which a finding]
of guilty is returned.

SPCMCA - Special Couf‘. Martial
Convening Authority wh¥is not
empowered to convene a general court-
martial. This column will be completed
in each special court-martial case by the
SPCMCA or his/her designated
representative.

GCM_or JA - General Court-Mariial
Convening Authority or Judge
Advocate. This column will be
completed in any:case in which the
record is forwardgd by the commander
exercising generd! court-martial
jurisdiction to The Judge Advocate
General of the branch of service
concerned. If the record is reviewed
under Article 64(a), UCMLI, this
column wiil be completed by the judge
advocate accomplishing the review

OJAG - Appropriate appeliate agency in the Office
cof The Judge Advocate Genera! of the branch of
service concerned. This column will be disregarded
Jf arecord of trial was reviewed under Article 64,

L UCMI, and in cases where there are no approved
*findings of guilty.

References - All references are to the Uniform Code
of Military Justice (UCMYJ) and the Manual for
Courts-Martial, United States (MCM), 1984,

SECTION A - PRETRIAL AND TRIAL PROCEDURE

TC SPCMCA | GCM or OJAG
JA
YES} NO | YES! NO [ YES[ NO | YES | NO

6. a. If a general court-martial: Was the accused represented in the Article 32
investigation by civilian or military counsel of his/her own selection or by
counsel qualified within the meaning of Article 27(b), UCMJ?

b. Ifnot: Did the accused waive his/her right to such representation?

7. Does the record show place, date, and hour of each Article 39(a) session,
the assembly and each opening and closing thereafter?

8. a. Areall convening and amending orders of courts to which charges were

referred entered in the record?

b. Are court members named in the convening orders, detailed military
judge (if any), counsel and the accused accounted for as present or absent?

c. Was less than a querum present at any meeting requiring the presence

of court members (RCM 805))?

d. Does the record show that after each session, adjournment, recess, or
closing during the frial, the parties to the trial were accounted for when the

court reopened (A13-5)7

g. If the military judge or any metnber present at assembly was thereafter
absent, was such absence the result of challenge, physical disability or based
on geod cause as shown in the record of frial (RCM SOS(c)2YAN?

9. Were the reporter and interpreter, if any, sworn or previously sworn?

10. a. Was the military judge properly certified (RCM 502{c))?

b, Was the military judge properly detailed (RCM 503(1))?

¢. Was the military judge present during all open sessions of the court?

11. a. Was the accused advised that:

(1) He/she had the right to be repre

sented free of charge by a military

lawyer of his/her own selection, if reasonably available, in which case detailed

counsel might be excused (RCM 506(a)}?

DD FORM 494, OCT 84, Page 1

Previous edifions are obsolete.
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COURT-MARTIAL DATA SHEET

SECTION A - PRETRIAIL AND TRIAL PROCEDURE
(CONTINUED)

TC SPCMCA | GCM or QJAG
JA
YES| NO | YES| NO| YES{ NO; YES| NO

(2) He/she had the right to be represented at the trial by a civilian lawyer
provided at no expense to the government, in which case detailed counsel
would serve as asscciate counsel or be excused with the accused's consent?

{3) If he/she did not exercise any of the rights listed above, he/she would be
defended by detailed counsel certified under Article 27(b), UCMJ (RCM 502(d)(1))‘?

b. (1) Was the accused represented by a civilian lawyer?

{2) Did the accused request a specific military counsel?

{3) (a) If so, was such request complied with?

{b} If not, were reasons given why requested counsel was not
reasonably available?

12. a. Was the detailed defense counsel properly certified (RCM 502(d))?

b. Was at least one qualified counsel for each party present during all
open sessions of the court (RCM 502(d) and RCM 805(¢))?

13. a. If the special court-martial adjudged a BCD:

(1) Was a military judge detailed to the court (RCM 503(b))?

(2) If not, did the convening authority submit a statement indicating
why a military judge could not be detailed and why trial had to be held at that time
and place {Article 19, UCMI)?

{3} Was a verbatim transcript made {Article 19, UCMI)?

14. Did any person who acted as the accuser, investigating officer, military
judge, court member, or a member of the defense in the same case, or as
counsel for the accused at a pretrial investigation or other proceedings
involving the same general matter, subsequently act as a member of the
prosecution {RCM 502{d)(4))?

15. If any member of the defense had acted as a member of the prosecution in
the same case, was he/she excused (RCM 502(d)(4))?

16. 2. If any member of the defense had acted as the accuser, investigating
officer, military judge, or member of the court, were his/her services expressly
requested by the accused (RCM 502(d)(4))?

b. If not, was he/she excused?

17. a. I accused was an enlisted person, did he/she make a request that
enlisted persons be included in membership of the court?

b. If 50, were at least one-third of the members who tried the case enlisted
persons, or did the convening authority direct the trial without enlisted
persons and provide a detailed written explanation which is appended to the
record (RCM 503(a)(2))?

¢. Did any enlisted member of the court belong to the same unit as the accused?

18. If a military judge was detailed to the court, was the accused informed of
his/her right to request trial by military judge alone?

19. Were the members of the court, military judge (if any) and the personnel!
of the prosecution and defense sworn or previously sworn?

20. a. Was any person sitting as a member of the court, or military judge (if
any), the accuser, a witness for the prosecution, the investigating officer, staff
Jjudge advocate, counsel, or convening authority, or upon rehearing or new
trial was he/she a member of the former trial (RCM $02{b) and RCM 912(1))?

b. If'so, did the accused waive such disqualification (RCM 212(f)(4) and
RCM 902(e))?

DD FORM 494, OCT 84, Page 2

(602198
20041130




COURT~-MARTIAL DATA SHEET
TC SPCMCA | GCM or OJAG
SECTION A& - PRETRIAL AND TRIAL PROCEDURE JA
(CONTINUED) YES| NO | YES! NO YES{ NO| YES| NO

21. a. Was each accused extended the right to challenge military judge (if
any), and any member of the court for cause and to exercise one peremptory
challenge?

b. Was action by court upon challenges proper (RCM 902 and RCM 912)?

¢. Does the record show that a member excused as a result of a challenge
withdrew from the court?

22, a. Was the accused properly arraigned (RCM 904)?

b. Do the following appear in the record: The charges and specifications,
the name, rank and unit/command name of the person signing the charges,
the affidavit, and the order of reference for the trial?

¢. Except in time of war, was the accused brought to trial (which includes
an Article 39(a}, UCMI session) by general court-martial within five days {by
special court-martial within three days} subsequent fo service of charges upon
him/her (RCM 602)?

d. If so, did the accused object to trial?

23. a. Were any charges or specifications affected by the statute of limitations
{(RCM 907(b))?

b. If so, was accused advised of his/her right to assert the statute and was
his/her response recorded (RCM 907(b)Y?

24. Did the court take proper action with respect to motions raising defenses and
objections (RCM 905-967)?

25, a. Were pleas of accused regularly entered (RCM 910{a)}?

b. Were pleas of guilty properly explained, and accused’s responses recorded
(RCM 910{c))?

26. Does the record show that all witnesses were sworn?

27. Did the military judge or president advise the court concerning the
elements of each offense, each lesser included offense reasonably raised by
the evidence, and the presumption of innocence, reasonable doubt, and
burden of proof, pursuant to Article 51(c}, UCMJ (RCM 920{e))?

28. a. If trial was by military judge alone, did the military judge announce the
findings (RCM 922)?

b. If the trial was with members, did the president announce the findings
(RCM 922)?

¢, If special findings were requested, were they made a part of the record?

29, Were the findings in proper form (A10)?

30. a. Was the evidence, if any, of previous convictions admissible and
properly infroduced in evidence (RCM 1001(b)(3))?

b. Was the information from personnel records of the accused properly
admitted (RCM 1001(b)(23)?

¢. Was the defense permitted to introduce evidence in extenuation and
mitigation after the court announced findings of guilty (RCM 1001(c})?

31. a. Ina trial with members, did the president announce the sentence
(RCM 1007)?

b. I[ftrial was by military judge alone, did the military judge announce the
sentence (RCM 1007y?

DD FORM 494, OCT 84, Page 3
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COURT~MARTIAL DATA SHEET
TC SPCMCA | GCM or QJAG
SECTION A ~ PRETRIAL AND TRIAL PROCEDURE JA
{CONTINUED) YES! NO| YES| NO | YES| NO| YES| NO
32. Was the sentence in proper form (Al1)?
33. Is the record properly authenticated (RCM 1104)?
34. a. Did all members who participated in proceedings in revision vote on
original findings and sentence (RCM 1102(e)}(1})?
b. At proceedings in revision, were a military judge (if one was present at
the trial), the accused, and counsel for the prosecution and defense present
(RCM 1102(eX1))?
35. Was each accused furnished a copy of the record or substitute service
made on defense counsel (RCM 1104(b))?
36. Was clemency recommended by the court or military judge?
GCM or
SECTION B -~ PROCEDURE AFTER TRIAL TC SPCMCA JA 0OJAG
YES!| NO| YES| NO | YES] NO| YES| NO

37. Was the court convened by proper authority (RCM 504(b))?

38. Did the court have jurisdiction of persen and offense (RCM 202 & 2037

39. Dwoes each specification state an offense under the code (RCM 907(b))?

40, Did the accused have the requisite mental capacity at the time of trial and
the requisite mental responsibility at the time of the commission of each
offense (RCM 909 and RCM 916(k))?

41, Is the evidence sufficient to support the findings?

42, Is the sentence within legal limits (RCM 1112(d)?

43, Is the action of the convening authority properly entered in the record
and signed (RCM 1107(f))?

44. If appropriate, is a proper place of confinement designated (RCM
1107(H{4){c)?

45, a. Was the staff judge advocate’s post-trial recommendation served on
the defense counsel for comment (RCM 1106(£)?

b. If the addendum to the recommendation contained new matters, was
it served on the defense counsel for comment (RCM T105(£(7)?

¢. Did the accused submit matters for the convening authority's
consideration in a timely manner (RCM 1105)?

d. If yes, was the convening authority's action subsequent to the
submission of the matters?

e. If no, did the accused waive in writing the right to submit matters and
was the action taken subsequent to the written waiver or did the time periods
provided in RCM 1105(c) expire before the convening authority's action?

46. a. Does the record indicate that the accused was advised of his/her
appellate rights (RCM 1010)?

b. Do the allied papers contain a statement indicating the desires of the
accused with respect to appellate representation in the event his/her case is
referred to a court of military review?

c. Did the accused waive or withdraw appellate review and is the waiver

or withdrawal in proper form and attached to the record of trial (RCM 1110,
Al & 20)?

DD FORM 494, OCT 84, Page 4
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' COURT-MARTIAL DATA SHEET

SECTION C - COURT-MARTIAL ORDERS {(CMO)

TC SPCMCA | GCM or OJAG
JA
YES| NO| YES| NO | YES| NO | YES| NO

47. Deoes the initial CMQ bear the same date as the action of the convening
authotity who published it?

48. Are all the orders convening the court which tried the case correctly cited
in the CMO?

49. Are the accused's name, rank, SSN, unit/command name and branch of
service correctly shown in the CMO?

50. Are all the charges and specifications (including amendments) upon which the
accused was arraigned correctly shown in the CMO (RCM 1114)?

51. Are the pleas, findings, and sentence correctly shown in the CMO
{(RCM 1114)%?

52. Does the CMO show the date the sentence was adjudged?

53. Is the action of the convening authority correctly shown in the CMO?

54. Is the CMO properly authenticated (RCM 1114)?

535. REMARKS:

DD FORM 494, OCT 84, Page 5
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COURT~-MMRTIAL DATA SHEET

55. REMARKS (Continued):

56. TRIAL COUNSEL

a. TYPED NAME (Last, First, Middle Initial} { b. RANK

d. DATE SIGNED

7 Zee. 04
57. CONVENING AUTHORITY OR HIS/HER REPRESENTATIVE

a. TYPED NAME (Last, First, Middle Initial}) | . RANK c. SIGNATURE d. DATE SIGNED

$8, STAFF JUDGE ADVOCATE OF GENERAL COURT-MARTIAL CONVENING AUTHORITY OR REVIEWING JUDGE ADVOCATE

a. TYPED NAME (Last, First, Middle [niial) | b, RANK d. DATE SIGNED
CoL 25 foc. 4

59. ACTION IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE ADVOCAT

2. ACTION:

b. INDIVIDUAL COMPLETING DATA SHEET

(1) TYPED NAME (Last, First Middle Initial | {2} RANK {3) SIGNATURE {4) DATE SIGNED

DD FORM 494, OCT 84, Page 6 002202
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CORRECTED COPY

DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
 Headquarters, Il Corps
Victory Base, Irag
APO AE 08342-1400

GENERAL COURT-MARTIAL ORDER 5 December 2004
NUMBER | 9 i
Specialist Megan M. Ambuht, - U.8. Army, Headquarters and Headquarters

Company, 16th Military Police Brigade (Airborne), I} Corps, Victory Base, lrag, was
arraigned at Victory Base, Iraq, on the following offenses at a general court-martiat
convened by the Commander, i Corps.

Charge I: Article 81. Plea: None Entered. Finding: None Entered.

Specification: At or near Baghdad Central Confinement Facility, Abu Ghraib Irag, on or

Sergeant
and Private First Class,
to commit an offense under the Uniform Code of Military Justice, to wit: maltreatment of

subordinates, and in order to effect the object of the conspiracy the said Specialist
* who

Megan M. Ambuhl did participate in a photograph with Private First Clas

- fied a leash around the neck of a detainee and led the detainee down the corridor with

the leash around his neck. Plea: None Entered. Finding: None Entered.

Charge Il Article 92. Plea: None Entered. Finding: None Entered.

Specification: In that Specialist Megan M. Ambgh Lg}vﬁo knew of her duties, at or near
Baghdad Central Correction Facility, Abu Ghraib, Iraq, from on af about 20 October
2003 to on or abeut 1 December 2003, was derelict in the performance of those duties
in that she willfully failed to protect Iraqi detainees from abuse, cruelty and _
maltreatment, as it was her duty to do. Plea: None Entered. Finding: None Entered.

Charge lil:_Article 93. Plea: None Entered. Fin_digg: None Entered.

Speciiation Ator near Baghdad Cehird Corretion ity Abu Ghraib, Irag, on or

about 8 November 2003, did maltreat several lraqi detainees, Persons sublect to her

orders, by watching naked detainees in a pyramid of human bodies. Plea: None
Entered. Finding: None Entered.
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GCMO No. 9, DA, Headquarters, Il Corps, Victory Base, Irag, APO AE 09342-1400,
dated 5 December 2004 (continued)

Charge 1V: Article 134. Plea: None Entered. Findings: None Entered.

- Specification: At or near Baghdad Central Confinement Facility, Abu Ghraib, frag, on or

about 8 November 2003, wrongfully commit an indecent act with Iraqi detainees, Staff

Y and Private First Class
by observing a group of detainees masturbating, or attempting to masturbate,
whiie they were located in a public corridor of the Baghdad Central Correction Facility,
with other soldiers who photoaraphed or watched the detainees’ actions. Plea: None

Entered. Findings: None Entered.

Additional Charge I:_Article 81. Plea: None Entered. Finding: None Entered.

Specification: At or near Baghdad Central Conﬁnement Facility. Abu Ghraib, lrag. on or

fo commit an offense under the

ry : subordinates, and in order to
effect the object of the conspiracy, the $aid Corpora lace naked detainees'in a
human pyramid. Plea: None Entered. Finding: None Entered.

b

Stpdy

Additional Charge I: Adicle 93. Plea: None Entered. Finding: None Entered. #

Specification 1: At or near Baghdad Central Confinement Facility, Abu Ghraib, Iraq. on
or about 8 November 2003, did maltreat several detainees, persons subiject to her
orders, by watching naked detainees being forced to masturbate in front of other
detainees and soldiers. Plea: None Entered. Finding: None Entered.

Specification 2: At or near Baghdad Central Confinement Facility, Abu Ghraib, Iraq, on
or about 23 October 2003, did maltreat several detainees, persons subiject to her
articipating in a photograph with Private First Clas epicting Private
holding & naked detaipee by a leash wrapped around the detainee’s neck
and by watching Private First Class hold a naked detainee by a leash wrapped
around said detainee’s neck. Plea: None Entered. Finding: None Entered.

ACTION

The accused having been arraigned, the proceedings were terminated on 25 August
2004. The Charges and Specifications are dismissed. All rights, privileges, and property
of which the accused has been deprived by virtue of these proceedings will be restored.
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flated 5 December 2004 (contin uet)

BY COMMAND OF LIEUTENANT GENERAL METZ

8, 1 Corps

G, Det D, 15 i Bn, ATTN: FAO (1)

Qdr, 15th PSB, ATTN: Records Section (1)
Clerkof Court, ATTN: 901 N. Stuart St,,

EC, ATTN: PCRE-FS, Indianapelis, IN 46248 (1) | v
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- DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
Headquarters, 1li Corps
Victory Base, lraq
APO AE 09342-1400

0CT 2 8 2004

4

AFZF-CG

MEMORANDUM FOR Staff Judge Advocate -

SUBJECT: Disposition of the Court-Martial Charges Preferred Against%pecialist
Megan M. Ambuhl

The recommendations of the Staff Judge Advocate are approved. Pursuant {o the
accused'’s offer to plead guilty, the attached charges and their specifications are

referred to trial by summary court-martial. | hereby appoint Lieutenant Co[onel-
as the summary court-martiaf officer.

%1%

THOMAS F. ME
Lieutenant General, USA
Commanding
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AFZF-JA-MJ OCT 2 8 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR Commander, [l Corps, Victory Base, lrag, APO AE 09342-1400

SUBJECT: Advice on Disposition of the Court-Martial Charges Previously Referred
Against

Specialist Megan M. Ambuh! I l-~c 10N MEMORANDUM

1. Purpose. To forward for disposition, in accordance with Rule for Court-Martial
(RCM) 407, the courtgmartial charges against Specialist Megan M. Ambuhl,

Headquarters and Headquarters @ompany, 16th Military Brigade (Airborne), lll Corps,
Victory Base, Iraq.

2. Background. On 21 July 2004, you referred the charges (including additional
charges) and specifications in this case to trial by general court-martial. On 13 October
2004, the Defense submitted the attached offer to plead guilty, under which you would
agree to refer all charges and specifications to trial by summary court-martial.

3. Hecommendations. &

a. Chain of Command. The chain.-of command recommends you accept the
attached offer to plead guilty and refer this case to a summary court-martial.

b. Staff Judge Advocate. | recommend you accept the attached offer to plead guilty
and refer this case to a summary court-martial.

4. Staff Judge Advocate Review. | affirm my prior review of these charges under RCM
406 and Article 34, Uniform Code of Military Justice (UCMJ). ltis my legal conclusion
that (1) The specifications allege offenses under the UCMJ; (2) The allegations of the
offenses are warranied by the evidence indicated in the attached documentation; and
(3) The court-martial will have jurisdiction over the accused and the offenses alleged.

5. POC is Captain{fjjjffat DsN 318-s22 il

Encls
1. Charge Sheet OL, JA
2. Additional Charge Sheet Staff Judge Advocate

3. Offer to Plead Guilty
4. Allied Documents
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w | HEADQUARTERS
MULTI-NATIONAL CORPS - IRAQ
BAGHDAD, IRAQ
APO AE 09342

" a0 BT 28 200

ATTENTION OF;
FICI-JA

MEMORANDUM FOR Lieutenant Colore! || [N 57t~ signa! Battation, 3rd
Signal Brigade, Victory Base, Iraq APO AE 08342

SUBJECT: Appointment as a Summary Court-Martial Officer

1. Pursuant to Rules for Court Martial 401 and 403, i hereby appoint you the Summary
Court-Martial Officer for the referred charges pertaining to Specialist (E-4) Megan M.
Ambubhl, Headquarters and Headquarters Company, 16th Military Police Brigade
(Airborne), Victory Base, iraq, APO AE 09342

2. Befi nvene this court-martial you will contact your legal advisor, Major
Office of the Staff Judge Advocate, 1st Calvary Division, Victory Base
{North), Iraq, at DSN 302-531 for a briefing. During the course of the proceeding,

you may seek assistance from your legal advisor.

3. It will be your duty to come to a factual conclusion on this case at hand and, drawn
from the evidence presented, adjudge a sentence that is not disproportionate to the

offenses committed.

Enc! THOMAS F. METZ
nc Lieutenant General, USA
Commanding
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UNITED STATES

V. OFFER TO PLEAD GUILTY

AMBUHL, Megan M.

SPC, U.S. Amy.

Headquarters and Headquarters Company
16th Military Police Brigade (Airborne)
I Corps, Victoty Base, Iraq

APO AE 09342-1400

8 October 2004

1. I, Specialist Megan M. Ambuhl, the accused in a pending court-martial, offer to plead guilty
as follows: :

a. Tothe Spéciﬁcation of Charge I and to Charge I. Not Guilty,
b. Tothe Spéciﬁcation of Charge II and to Charge II: Guilty;
c. To t?e Sp@cificaﬁon of Cha;gc I and to Charge IIE: Not Guilty; and
d. To the Specification of Chaﬁgc IV and to Charge IV: Not Guilty.
2. Aspartof th13 offer, I also agree to the following:
a. To enter into a Stipulation of Fact correctly describing the offense to which I am offering
to plead guilty. Ialso agree that this stipulation may be used by the Summary Court-Martial

officer to ascertain matters pertinent to findings and sentence. If my plea is not accepted, this
offer to stipulate is null and void.

b. Lagree to waive unconditionally any right I may have to an administrative separation
board under AR -635-200, in the event my unit elects {o separate me from the Army. This
unconditional waiver includes any right I may have to a separation board if I am being
considered for separation under other than honorable conditions.

¢. Iagree to waive the presence at my court-martial of all witnesses located outside of
Victory Base, Iraq.

Facility at Abu Ghraib.

e Tor t deferment of any period of adjudged confinement until after the conclusion of United
States v. MIAW Article 57a, UCMLI.

1
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3. Lagree to take the actions above provided the Convening Authority takes the following
actions:

a. Refers this case to trial by summary court-martial.
b. Authorizes and orders the Trial Counsel to dismiss without prejudice the charges and
specifications to which I have pled not guilty, once the summary court-martial officer accepts

my plea of guilty to Charge II and its Specification.

4. Iunderstand that I may request to withdraw the plea of guilty at any time before my plea is
accepted and that if 1 do so, this agreement is canceled. This agreement will also be canceled if:

a. Ifail to plead guilty as agreed above;

b. The Stipulation of Fact is modified at any time after I have affixed my signature thereto
without the consent of both myself and the Government; or

¢. The summary court-martial officer either refuses to accept my plea of guilty or changes my
plea of guilty during the trial.

5. This wﬂhng includes all terms and conditions of this Offer to Plead Guilty and contains all .

promises made to me or by me concerning my plea of guilty. There are no other promises,
conditions, or understandings regarding my proposed plea of guilty that are not contained in this offer.

The offer to plead

SPC, U.S. Army Civilian Defense Counsel
Accused
cuilty dated 8 October 2004'is: | | ¥

3 * THOMAS F. METZ
Lieutenant General, USA
Commanding

OCT 2 8 2004
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UNITED STATES

Il Cotps, Victory Base, iraq
APO AE 09342

)

) STIPULATION OF FACT
)
v, )
3
AMBUHL, MEGAN M. )
SPC, U.S. Army )
Headquarters & Headquarters Company)

16" Miitary Police Brigade (Airborne) ) 8 October 2004

)
)

. NATURE AND USES OF THE STIPULATION:

1. This document represents a set of facts that both the Govemment and SPC Megan
Ambuhl (“the accused”) agree upon as true. These facts are admissible in evidence
and can be considered by the Summary-Court Martial to determine the providence of
the accused’s plea of guilty; to establish the elements of all charges and specifications;
and in congideration of an appropriate sentence. For these purposes, the accused
expressily waives any objection that she may have to the admission of these facts, and
any referenced attaghments, into eviderice at {rial under any evidentiary rufe, appficable
case law, or Rule for Courts-Martial that might otherwise make them inadmissibie.

P

H. THE AGCUSED: # :
THE ACCUSED _

2. 1, SPC Magan Ambuhl, am 30 years old: | graduated High Schbol in 1992, and then
attended Coastal Carolina College where ! received a B.S. in Biology. My GT score is
128. 1entered militagy service on 31 Jaruary 2002. | attended One Station Unit
Training at Fort Leenard Weod, Missourl. | cormipleted Basic Training approximately 23
June 2002. After | eompleted my MOS training, | was released from active duty
approximately 23 August 2002. On 21 February 2003, { was activated for the current
tour of service in support of Operation Iraqi Freedom. | have a total of 2 years and 9
months service In the United States Army Reserve including my Delayed Entry time. |
received Geneva Cenvention and UCMJ training during an approximately 60-90 minute
block of instruction in Basic training, but cannot remember any specifics of those
classes. Inmy eivilian ilfe, | work as a histology technician at LabCorp, a private

- company in Herndon, Virginia.

3. lwas originally assigned to the 352™ MP Company, but was involuntarily transferred
to the 372™ MP Company. The 372™ spent 3 months training at Ft. Lee, Virginia on
Law and Order missions. Now | am assigned to Headquarters and Headquarters
Service Company, 168" Military Police Brigade. At all times relevant 1o the charged
offenses, | was 29 years old and on active duty.
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Stipulation of Fact — UnitewJates v. SPC Megan M. Ambuhi

. BACKGROUND

4. In May 2003, 1, along with members of the 372d MP Company, arrived in Kuwait.
The comparny procesded north e the city of Hillah where the unit was responsible for,
the surrounding area.

among other things, assisting and fraining t i Police |
ing this {im e friends with SSG CPL, and
SPC fellow MPs in my company. | am still good Triends wit
an

PC
5. On 14 QOctober 2003, the 372d MP Co. assumed duties at the Baghdad Central
Confinement Facility (BCCF). The BCCF is located in Abu Ghraib, a city located
approximately 12 miles west of Baghdad, lraq. Within the BCCF there are several
compounds used to hold a large number of detainees. One of the compounds is
actually a series of buildings built to contain individual cells. This compound is known
as the “hard site” and consists of a number of halls, or tiers. Detainees in tier 1 were
divided into two sub-tiers, tier 1A and tier 1B, During the relevant time, tier 1A was used
for Military Intelligence (M) holds - individuals who were bslieved to possess
information of tactical, strategic, or operational value. Tier 1B housed certain sub-
categories of civilian detainees -- including women, juveniles, and detainees suspected
of psychiatric/psychological probiems or mental instability. 1B also housed many
detainees that had caused serious disciplinary problems. There were juvenile and
female M| holds on 1B from the beginning. Later on, there were all the different types of
male Ml and OGA holds as well.

6. During the months of October 2003 to January 2004, | worked at the BCCF. My
primary responsibility was to serve as a night-shift guard for tier 18. Specifically, | was
given the responsibility to safeguard the women and juveniles who were held in the hard
site on tier 18. My formal supervisor duririg the
the NCOIC, although SSG
with two other ataff sergeants, SSG
uld also tween serving as the Sergeant of the Guard (SOG) during this
e. SFC rrived so in November was the NCOIC of the entire
hard site. During the day-shift, S generally served as the immediate
supervisor for the tiers, with SSG serving as the SOG. Overall responsibitity for
rgeant and Platoon Leader, SFC

fre hard sjte remained with the 4™ P}
P spectively. CPT as the Company Commander and
1 was the Lompany 1SG, and these two men had the overall responsibility
for the hard site, Camp Vigilant, as well as the company’s LSA.

7. The 372d was not formally trained to conduct interment and resettiement (IR)

operations of the type executed at Ghraib. Several members of the company,
including CPL. 88G and SSG ere corrections officers in the
United Siates. .




Stipukation of Fact - Unitegwlates v. SPC Megan M. Ambuhl

Nf. THE MISCONDUCT: THE ELEMENTS

8. Between the time frame of 20 October 2008 and 1 December 2003, 1 was derelict in
the performance my duties, which | knew, in that [ willfully failed to protect Iragi
detainess from abuse, cruelty, and maltreatment. Specifically:

a. | had a certain prescribed duty to the iraqi detainees, thatis { had a tauty to
pmtectthsm from a%use cruelty, and maltreatment, and?

ab I actually knew Ef this assigned duty, and

¢. That between on or about 20 October 2003 and on or about 1 December
2003, 1 was derelict in the performance of that duty by willfully failing to protect the iragi
detainees from abuse, cruelty, and maltreatment.

IV. THE MISCONDUCT: THE UNDERLYING FACTS

9. During the time of 20 October 2003 and 1 December 2003, | witnessed numerous
acts of abuse, cruelty, and malireatment of Iraqi detainess within the hard site. This
time was very confusing for me, and things were done to detainees that | questioned,
but that apparently were permissible. But there were some things that were done that {
knew were wrong at the time, and | did not act to stop this behavior to protect the
detainees from abuse, crueity, and maltreatment. There are two primary incidents that |
specifically remember as being obviously wrong and that [ ook no action to prevent,
either diroctly by saying something or taking action to stop the incident, or indirectly by
reporting this behavior to someone who could stop the misconduct.

10. The first incident occurred approximately 8 days after the 372d had assumed dutles
at the hard site, on the evening of 24 Qctober 2003 :

"
il

a-.@s'hls incident took place in the hard_rsne, ‘in tier 1A/1B and involved three
CP PFCh myself, and a detainee named Mr|

9%
L g I3 ¥

b. PF was a sclc_gief assignsd to the 372d MP Co., but not as an MP.
Instead, PFC as an admiiistratlve clerk who had no duties that required her

;1o bein the hard site. PFC however, was involved in a sexual relationship with
‘CP a rslatlonsﬁlp the company had tned"‘tc stop but apparently did not.
C. Ths detainee involv nickname as in the hole on
the night of 24 October 2003. a smal man weighing approximately 100
when he was released. ad been arrested for attacking coalition forces.
ﬁn attacked orghreatened t0 a ck his MP, guards. -iemcnstrated clear
ns of a’signififant méntal 1IIne s, and refised t6 accept anything offered to him

including clothes, food, or water. As a result, was often naked, as he was on the
night of 24 October 2003. Because.routineiy refused food and water, the MP
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Stipdlation of Fact ~ Uniteu-diates v. SPC Megan M. Ambuhl

guard'mg-had to forcibly administer IV's to keep him alive, and this left.weak

and frafl.

d. On 24 October 2003, ulled’from the hole. CPL
looped & tie-down strap around neck, and handed the other end of the sirap to
PF(# ﬁo pose holding the strap while he
took ttempted to crawl along the fioor. CP did not
make any comments to me he had bsen ordered to do this, and P ally
had no busine. ing there in the first place. 1t was not my idea to stage this
photograph and | did not think there was a legitimate reason to do so. Atthe
time this was happening ] knew it was wrong just as | know now that it was wrong. 1 did
not say anything to CPL* or PFCﬂto the effect that ! shouldn't be
trealed this way, and [ didn't try to stop this ig any way. [ also didn't tell anyone about
this although | knew it was wrong to treauar any detainee this way.

12. The second incident occurred in the late evening of 7 November 2003.

a. As mentioned above, the BCCF consists of both the hard site and several
compounds. One compound within the BCCF is Camp Ganci. Camp Ganci genarally
houses detainees who may be a sscurity risk if released or hold some low-level
inteligence value. Camp Ganci was not administered by the 372™, but by another MP
company. Unlike its sister camp, Camp Vigilant was run by 2™ platoon of the 3724,

Gamp Ganci was fairly disorderly and riots sometimes occurred. Qne such riot occurred
on the night of 7 November 2003.

b. After the riot at Camp Ganci was controlled, seven detainses believed to be
pariicipants in the riot were taken to the hard site to be placed into igolati
of punishing them for their conduct. T n detainees wers Mr.

H

. didn’t know the names of these
men at time, but I've since besn told who they were. | recently heard Mr.h
mesﬁfy in court as to what happened to him that nignt and was
very moved as he taiked about being hurt and abused, and about the deep shame he
felt as a result of what my fellow soldiers did to him that night.

¢. The detainees were taken into the hard site with sandbags on their heads and
flex-cufis on their hands. This practice was not uncommon for incoming personnel and
was generally done for security reasons. Present were a r of MP who were
assigned ight-shift including SSG HCPL SPC
SGTﬂ and myself. Also present was SPC a mechanic
assigned to the company.

d. Once the detainees arrived in the hard site, the situation deteriorated. 1 saw

the detainees were thrown together in a pile, still bound and hocded. | then
proceeded to walk up the stairs to the upper level. SGT an MP
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Shipulation of Fact — Unite.. Jates v. SPC Megan M. Ambuhl

who worked in the fiers was there. SGT-used his combat step
on the hands and feet of the detainees. | walked up next to SF ' who

n the upper tier standing at the railing. SF and | saw SGT
stepping on the detai nd motioned for , and

ordered him to leave. Ieft the hard site and oft the
tier. | think SGT#eturned ater to witness the additional abuse of the
'detainees, but { did not witness him do so.

eld a defainee’s head with his fist cocked if he were about to punch the
A soldier or soldiers photographed CP in this position; | was upstairs
in the tier office. Cpl may have hit a detainee; however | did not witness it. From
SS%HStimony at his guilty pea, | learned he made an “X" with his hand on
the of another bound and hooded detainee, and then punched the detainee with
great force in the chest,_This blow caused the detainee to have great dlfflculi‘

E | also saw a picture of CPL posad with a detaines. In the pose, CPL

breathing. When hit the detaines, whom | now know was Mr
got an inhaler from another detainee and tried o help him.
see, but a medic was called and she tried to help Mr. breathe normally

again. After Mr.l-\started breathing again, the medic left.

f SSGHand CPL-trip-searched the detainees. [ didn't {ake part
in this either. From the investigation, | learned that SPOiwrote word “rapeist”
on the leg of one detaines, listing his crime.

g SSG-and CP placed the detainees into the humiliating and
demeaning position of a naked human pyramid. Because the detainees did not speak
English, they were physically pushed and forced into these degrading positions. The
other soldiers then began photographing and posing for photographs with the detainees
in humiliating and degrading positions. This I leamed from the varicus pictures and
photographs. | did not pose for any photographs or see others do so.

h, SPC

| talked in the upstai i going to make personal
phone calls. S ffice and GPWM | found cells for the
detainees on tier iB. SPC came back and then she and [ left. When{ was
going downstairs, | witnessed one detaines knesling down in front of ancther with his
head a few inches away from the standing detainee’s groin area. The dgtaineg who
was standing had his hands on the head of the kneeling detainee. SP and |
then left and went to the Internet café. We came back to the tier around 0200 and the
detainees were in their cells. The detainees were naked with sandbags on thair heads
and no mattresses or blankets. [t was a cold night and the detainees must have been
very cold without anything to wear.

i. Prior to the investigation starting, | saw various videos and pictures depicting
some of the events on the night of 7 November. | should have stopped or reported
these events, both those | saw and those | found out about later, but [ did not.
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Stiputation of Fact —~ Unite.. Jétes v. SPC M

V. OTHER MATTERS

on 13 January 2004 when SPC _ slid a compact disc containing images
of delamee abuse under the office door of the criminal investigation division (CID) at
Baghdad Central Confinement Facility

BCCF) near Aby Ghraib, Iraq. SPC had
received two compact dises from CPL L another soldjer assigned to
BOCF.'SPC*ad asked for pictures of the hardsite. SPC ownloaded the

0

images from iscs to his computer without looking at them. Atfter saving the
q;ened the files which included innocuous pictures of palaces in

" 13. 1leamed from the C!D case file irovided_ to my counsel that the investigation began

pichures, SPC
Iraq and soldiers working at the BCCF. The images also included pictures of naked
detainees in forced sexual positions (Attachmenis 2 and 6). SPCPetumed the
two discs to CPL and then bumed the images to a compact disc that he
anonymously provided t¢ CID.

14. The CID investigation further showed that the day after SPC-ind the disc
under CID's door, SPC poke to investigators and made a sworn statement
describing the abuse of detainees at the BCCF. In his statement, SPC , & junior
enlisted soldier, explained that he knew abusing detainees was wrong and wanted it to
stop. He did not cite any rule of law or policy of the facility; he stated that he simply “felt
the pictures were morally wrong.”

15. | have since leamed that the humiliating and sadistic acts of maltreatment and
dehumanization described herein are unacceptable in any culture, but especially so in
the Arab world. Homosexual acts are against Islamic law and Arab.men consider it
humiliating to be naked in front of others. Placing the detainees together in a manner to

simuale acts of homosexuality seriously violated the tenets of Islamic law and degraded
the detzinees.

16. Over the past few months, both Middie Eastern and Western media outlets have
broadcast some of the attached photographs. The acts of the soldiers in these
photographs significantly contributed to tarnishing the reputation and image of the
United States Armed Forces and the United States in the eyes of many Americans as
well as many individuals throughout the world. Had | attempted to stop this abuse, or

report it to the appropriate authorities sooner, much of the misconduct could have been
avoided entirely.

V1. EXTENUATION AND MITIGATION:
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Stipudation of Fact — Unitoulétes v. SPC Megan M. Ambuhl

17. 1 have agreed to cooperate with the govemment in the investigation of misconduct
within the BCCF. 1 will provide truthful information conceming the events that occurred
within the:BCCF from October 2003 to January 2004.

VIL. STIPULATION TO ADMISSIBILITY OF EVIDENCE

18. The government and the | agree that this stipulation of fact plus attached
enclosures are admissible at trial and may be considered in determining the providence
of my pleas and in determining an appropriate sentence. The attached enclosures
include Photo Exhibits 1-15 | appear in Photo Exhibits 3and 4.

i

(i

MEGAN M. AMBUHL

Civiian Deignse Counsel SPC,USA MAJ, JA
Accused Trial Counsel

&"/?WM
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OFFICE OF THE CLERK OF COURT
US ARMY JUDICIARY
ARLINGTON, VIRGINIA 22203-1837

THE RECCORD OF TRIAL HAS BEEN REVIEWED FOR RELEASE UNDER THE
PROVISIONS OF THE FREEDCM OF INFORMATION ACT. THE DOCUMENT(S]
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS HAS[HAVE] BEEN REMOVED FROM THIS COPY OF THE
RECORD BECAUSE THE RELEASE WOULD BE IN VIOLATION OF THE DOD
FREEDCM OF INFORMATION ACT PROGRAM, DOD 5400..7—R, EXEMPTION 6 and
7{C}):

Photographic Exhibits
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DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
HEADQUARTERS, lil CORPS
VICTORY BASE, IRAQ
APQ AE 08342-1400
REPLY TO

REPLYTO or 00T 2872004

AFZE-CG

MEMORANDUM FOR Specialist Megan M. Ambuh’ q Headquarters and
Headquarters Company, 16th Military Police Brigade, Victory Base, Iraq, APO AE 09342-1400

SUBJECT: Grant of Testimonial Immunity and Order to Testify

|
1. Purpose. Under the prowswns of Rule for Courts-Mart:aI'(RCM) 704(c), | grant you testimonial
immunity for any statements made during the [nvest[gatlon and any courts-martial resulting from

investigations into alleged abuse of detainees'co y the following soldiers in yoyr unit:
iali Spema[tst“ and
i i urther grant you immunity for testimony in any future

criminal prosecutions of soldiers of Civilians arising from detainee abuse allegations at Baghdad
Central Confinement Facility (BCCF).

2. Authority and Basis for Grant. As a general court-martial convening authority, | am authorized
to grant testimonial immunity under the provisions of RCM 704(c). Prior o granting testimonial
immunity and directing you to testify, | made the following findings:

a. Relevant Evidence. You possess information relevant to proving the government’s cases
against individuals who have been or will be charged with detainee abuse at BCCF.

b. Self-incrimination. Under ordinary circumstances, you would not be able to provide this
testimony without implicating yourself in a possible ¢riminal act. Absent a grant of immunity, it is
anticipated that you would invoke your right against self-incrimination and not testify in the courts-
martial listed above or any future criminal prosecutions.

¢. Necessily of Testimony. Your testimony before any court-martial which may be convened to
adjudicate the misconduct described above, and your cooperation with law enforcement officers,
investigating officers, and counsel investigating these allegations, is necessary to the public
interest, including the good order and discipline of the U.S. Army.

d. Military Status. You are an individual subject to the Uniform Code of Military Justice.

3. Scope of Immunity. Any information you give pursuant to this order, or any information directly
or indirectly derived from your testimony, shall not be used against you in a trial by courts-martial or
proceedings under Article 15, UCMJ, except for prosecution for perjury, false swearing, making a
false statement, or failing to comply with this order to testify.

4. Effective Date. This grant of immunity and order to testify shall be effective upon personal

delivery to you or your detailed military defense counsel. |

5. POC for this memorandum is Captain Neill at DSN 318—822-

THOMAS 1= METZ 002219

Lieutenant General, USA
Commanding
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AFZF-JA-MJ OCT 2 8 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR Commander, |li Corps, Victory Base, Iraq, APO AE 09342-1400
SUBJECT: Grant of Immunity and Order to Testify - ACTION MEMORANDUM

1. Purpose. To recommend vou grant testimonial immunity and an order to testify to
Specialist Megan M. Ambuhl

2. Background.

a. On 20 March 2004, Specialist Megan M. Ambuhl was charged with maltreating
detainees at the Baghdad Central Confinement Faclility (BCCF) near Abu Ghraib, Iraq.
Pursuant to an approved offer to plead guilty, Specialist Ambuhl will plead guilty at a
summary court-martial on 30 October 2004.

b. You have previously referred similar charges against Ser eant_
Specialistﬁancﬂ Specialist whose courts-

martial are pending. Specialist Ambuhl has agreed to testify against these co-accused
after receiving a grant of immunity and order to testify. She has also agreed to provide

truthful testiniony in the court-martial of Private First Classqa co-
accused stationed at Fort Bragg, North Carolina, and in other criminal prosecutions of

soldiers and civilians arising from detainee abuse allegations at BCCF.

3. Applicable Law. Under the provisions of Rule for Courts-Martial (RCM) 704(c) in the
Manual for Courts-Martial, you are authorized fo grant testimonial immunity subject to
making specific findings regarding the subjects listed below. Based on my review of the
case, all the specific findings are satisfied.

a. Relevant Evidence. Specialist Ambuhl possesses information relevant to proving
the government’s case against the four charged soldiers listed above. She witnessed
other soldiers abusing detainees at BCCF.

b. Self-incrimination. Specialist Ambuhl cannot convey this information without
implicating herself in possible criminal acts and, if asked to make a statement or if called
to testify, it is anticipated that she would invoke her right against self-incrimination and
not testify without a letter of testimonial immunity.

¢. Necessity of Testimony. The testimony of Specialist Ambuhi at the remaining
courts-martial is necessary to the public interest, including the good order and discipline
of the United States Army. Similarly, her cooperation with officers, investigating officers,
and counsel investigating these allegations is in the public interest.
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AFZF-JA-MJ
SUBJECT: Grant of Immunity and Order to Testify — ACTION MEMORANDUM

d. Military Status. Specialist Ambuhl is an individtiia! subject to the Uniform Code of
Military Justice.

4. Recommendation. | recommend you grant testimonial immunity and an order to
testify for Specialist Ambuhl. An action to accomplish this is attached.

5. POC is CPT (I chiet, Criminal Law Division, at 318-s22/J il

Enct
as COL, J
Staff Judge Advocate

go22et



SUMMARY COURT-.  TIiAL RIGHTS NOTIFICATION/W& 1 STATEMENT

For use GF i form, sea AR 27-1C; the propenent agensy is OTJAG™

1. STATEMENTY CONCERNING REFUSAL 7O ACCEPT QUALIFIED COUNSELING, ARTICLE 20, UCM. AND UNDERSTANDING OF RIGHTS

a. On Q‘ 1 (I?EEJT oH -, ¥ was afforded an opportunity to censult:with iege! counse! betore making my decision 1.gonzent to Summary
Couri-Martis! proceedings under Arficls. 20; USMJ.
b. 1 have degidsd not to see. coungel] in conngctlon with tHs aetion.

c. tunderstand riy rights undar Articls 20, UCMJ, Incluging my right to obiett friel By Summary Court-Martlal, punishment fimiitations, potaritia) use.of the retord of
Summaery Court:=Martizl In any subsgquent courts-mantlal, and other consequenoes of my declsion.

d. | voluntarily decide to ctnsent to trial by Summary: Court-Martiaf,

TYPED OR PRINTED NAME OF SERVICE MEMBER RANK SIGNATURE

MELAN M. AMBUHL SPe Mg

TYPED ORFRINTED NAME OF SUMIMARY COURT-MARTIAL DFFICER | RANK

A | -c

2. STATEMENT ACKNOWLEDGING GUALIFIED LEGAL COUNSEL FOR ARTICLE 20, UCKM,

RIGHTS ;

e On 9?? OC(DTj &V . | consulted with ¥
)

LAY

who

explained my rghts to'me under the provisions of Artigls 20, UCMJ, to.includs tay right to object to trial by Summary. Court-Martlal, punishment iimitations,
potential use of therecord of Summary Court-Martial procsedings In any subsequent courts-martigl, amd other conséguences of my decision.

B. | understand my rights and veluntarily decidéd to consent 10 trial by Summiary Couirt-Medtial.

TYPED DR PRINTED NAME OF SERVICE MEMBER RANK

| SIGNATIIRE
_ ; M. AMBUHL sec ﬂ/
PC Mesan M /PR

c. 1 have advised SPC/ l\/‘t EGA N M [ A‘ MBU H L of tiis or her stany
) Naing ang Rakk of Sbrifce Mémbi)
Summary Court-Martial and the possible consequences of His or her sonsent or objection to trigl by Summary Cour-hartial,

and Tegulatory rights with regard to this

TYPED OR PRINTED NAME OF DEFENSE-COUNSEL BRANGH RANK

e

3. REFUSAL TQ ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF ADVICE - ARTICLE 20, UCKJ’

Attar | ddvised

- . - - of hiis
(Namig {Firss,- 821, Lash) {Ramk} {S5NY

or her rights to-corisuit with fegat dunssl befire. making s decision to carisent of dbject 1o Summiary Court:Marta! proceedings under Articlo 20, YCMJ, he or she
refused to camplets and sign sn acknowtedgment of raceipt of the advica.

TYPED OR PRINTED NAME OF SUMMARY COURT-MARTIAL OFFICER | BANK SIGNATURE
REMARKS
DA FORM 5111, SEP 2002 DA FORM 5111-R, AUG 84, IS OBSOLETE. USAPA V1 .00ES
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DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
Headquarters and Headquarters Company
57th Signal Battalion
APO AE 09342

= 0CT 29 2004

AFZF-JA-MJ

MEMORANDUM FOR Specialist (E4) Megan M. Ambuhl—,. Headquarters and

Headquarters Company, 16th Military Police Brigade (Airborne), Victory Base, Iraq,
APO AE 09342

SUBJECT: Notification of Summary Court-Martial

1. On 30 October 2004, at 0800 hours, at the, Headquarters 57th Signal Battalion,
building 41, 1 will hold a Summary Court-Martial, to consider all facts and circumstances

concerning the charges referred against you on 21 July 2004, by Lieutenant General
Thomas F. Metz. The charge is:

Charge II: Dereliction of Duty, Article 92, UCMJ.

2. The uniform for the hearing is hereby designated as DCU’s. You have the right to be
present during the entire hearing.

3. You have the right to be represented at all times during the hearing by legaily
qualified civilian counsel, at no expense fo the government. You also have the right to
waive representation by counsel.

4. If reasonably available, | intend fo call the following witnesses: None.

5. Additionally, it is my intention to examine and consider evidence contained in the
court-martial packet.

6. As the summary court-martial officer, [ will try to arrange for the appearance of any
witnesses that you want to testify at the hearing. You will provide me with a list of the

witnesses you intend to call to testify in your defense NLT 1500 hours, 29 October
2004.

7. Sergeant— parategal, is detailed to this court-martial to provide
paralegal and administrative support.



AFZF-JA-MJ
SUBJECT: Notification of Summary Court-Martial

8. You may contact me by calling 822-

2 Encls
1. DD Form 458
2. DA Form 5111-R

Summary Coyrt-Martial Officer

I hereby acknowledge Receipt of this Notification of Summary Coust-Martial on this

241 dayof <7 2004,
MEGAN M. AMBUHL

SPC, USA
Respondent



DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
Headquarters and Headquarters Company
57th Signal Battalion
APO AE 09342

0CT 2 8 2004

AFZF-JA-MJ

MEMORANDUM FOR Specialist (E4) Megan M. Ambuhl, Headquarters and

Headquarters Company, 16th Military Police Brigade (Airborne}, Victory Base, [raq,
APO AE 09342

SUBJECT: Notification of Summary Court-Martial

¥
1. On 30 October 2004, at OﬂOOaiawours, at the Victory Base Court Room, building 94, |
will hold a Summiary Court-Martial, to consider all facts and circumstances concerning

the charges referred against you on 21 July 2004 by Lieutenant General Thomas F.
Metz. The charge is:

Charge |: Dereliction of Duty, Article 92, UCMJ.

2. The uniform for the hearing is hereby designated as DCU’s. You have the right {o be
present during the entire hearing.

3. You have the right to be represented at all times during the hearing by legally
qualified civilian counsel, at no expense to the government. You also have the right to
waive representation by counsel.

4. If reasonably available, | intend to call the following witnesses: None.

5. Additionally, it is my intention to examine and consider evidence contained in the
court-martial packet.

6. As the summary court-martial officer, | will try to arrange for the appearance of any
witnesses that you want to testify at the hearing. You will provide me with a list of the

withesses you intend to call to testify in your defense NLT 1500 hours, 28 October
2004.

7. Sergeant-para]ega[, is detailed to this court-martiai to provide
paralegal and administrative support.
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AFZF-JA-MJ
SUBJECT: Ngtification of Summary Court-Martial

8. You may contact me by calling S22
2 Encls

1. DD Form 458
2. DA Form 5111-R

Summary Court-Martial Officer

| hereby acknowledge Receipt of this Notification of Summary Court-Martial on this

21 dayof_2<c7 2004.
MEGAN M. AMBUHL

SPC, USA
Respondent
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i DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
i UNITED STATES ARMY TRIAL DEFENSE SERVICE
i REGION IX, BAGHDAD FIELD OFFICE
i * CAMP VICTORY, IRAQ
AFPQ AE 08342

REPLY TO
ATTENTICN OF;

FICI-JA-BFQ 29 October 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

SUBJECT: Notlﬁcatlon by Summary Court-Martial Officer -~ United States v. SPC Megan M.
Ambuh]

1. 0n 28 Ocfober 2004, LTC IR Svmmary Court-Martial Officer, notified the
accused, SPC Megan M. Ambubl, of the government’s intent to proceed to a Summary Court-
Martial (SCM) on “Charge I: Dereliction of Duty.”

2. The accused, her civilian defense counsel, and her military defense counsel understand that
the SCM wﬂI proceed on one charge of dereliction of duty. This charge has been misidentified
as “Charge I” and is correctly identified as the original Charge II. The substance and nature of

the charge haive not changed. The defense understands the reference to “Charge I” by the SCM
Officer to be an administrative error.

3. SPC Ambuhl is not prejudiced by this error and she and her defense team are on notice that
the offense tq be considered at the SCM is original Charge I, Dereliction of Duty.

4. Questions concerning tlus matter, may be addressed to me via email at
o " or by telephone at DSN: (312) 521-

/loriﬁinal Siﬁedﬂ

CPT, JA
Trial Defense Counsel
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PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHORITY: 42 U.8.C. 10606 gt sec., Victim's Rights and Restitution Act of 1890; 18 U.8.C, 1501 et sec., Victim and Witness
Protection Act of 1982. :

PRINCIPAL PURPOSES: Te inform victims and witnesses of their post-trial rights; to determine whether the victim or witness of a crime

elacts to be notified of changes in the confinement status of a convicted criminal offender; and to record the election by the victim or
witness of their desire to be nofified about subsequent changes it inmate status.

RCUTINE USES: None.

DISCLOSURE: Voluntary; however, failure to provide identifying information wili prevent the corrections facility from notifying victim or
witness of change in a criminal offender’s status.

SECTION | - ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION

Installation Victory Base City Baghdad State _lraq APOAE 09342

Incident Number Organizational Identifier (OR[)

SECTION i - CERTIFICATION OF NO VICTIM OR WITNESS

(Complete this section only if there are no victims or witnesses who are entitied lo notification under the Victinr's Rights and Restitution Act -
of 1990, and Dol Instruction 1030.2.}

As a representative for the Government in the court-martial case of United Satesv. AMBUHL, Megan M.

Name of accused)(Last, first, middle initiaf)
. convenedby  [jeutenant General Thomas F. Metz, il Corps, Commander
(Summary Court-martial, Convening Authority)

{Social Security Number)
1 certify that this case does not involve a victim or witness entitled to receive information about the confinement status of the

defendant as re im's Rights and Restitution Act of 1980 (Public Law 101-647; 104 Siat. 4820).

ignature of person ceril (Typed name (Last, firsf)

20041030 MAJ, Trial Counsel
(Date) YYYYMMDD) (Grade and title)

SECTION il - CERTIFICATION OF ADVICE TO VICTIM{S) AND WITNESS(ES)
(Complete this section when there are victims or witnesses entified to notification.}

1 certify that on this date | personally notified the victim{s) and witness(es] in the court-martial case of Unifed States v.

L}

MName of accusedj(Last, first, middle inifial) {Social Security Number)

Convened by

(Summary Court-martial, Convening Authority)

whose sentence included confinement, of their right under the Victim’s Rights and Restitution Act of 1890 {(Public Law 101-647,
104 Stat. 4820), to receive information about the status of the inmate, to include length of sentence, anticipated earliest refease
date, likely place of confinement, the possibility of transfer, and the right to receive niolification of a new place of confinement. i
advised the pbssibi.ffty of parole or c!erﬁen;;y with an explanation of these terms. Addifionaﬂy, | advised of the rght to prior
notification of the inmate’s parole hearings, release from confinement, escape and death. [ advised that to receive notification of
the inmate’s transfer, parole hearings, and reiease from confinement, the viclim or witness must provide the information required in
Section IV of this form. | advised all victims and witnesses that if they elect to terminate or reinitiate notifications, or if they change

their address listed abave, they must contact the Military Service Ceniral Repository listed in Section V.

{Signature of person certifying) (Typed name (Last, ﬁra@ O 2 3 e
(Date) YYYYMMDD) {Grade and fitle)
DD FORM 2704, MAR 1839 PREVIOUS EDITION 1S OBSOLETE.

USAPA V.00




SECTION IV - ELECTIONTOBEN.  "IED

The victim(s) and witness(es) listed below have elected the right to receive information about changes in the status of the
inmate by initialing the “Yes" block. If the inmate is transferred, they understand that they will be notified of the address of
the new confinement facility. They also understand that if they move or their telephene number changes, they must notify
the confinement facility of the new address or telephone numbers in order to be notified.

LiIST ALL VICTIMS AND WITNESSES INVOLVED IN THE GASE. {indicats whether a victim or witness be entering “V* or “W" in the appropri-
ate column. Those who elect to be notified of inmate status changes should initial in the “Yes” colurnn; otherwise initial the "No” column.)

NAME
(Last, First, Middle Initial}

ADDRESS

{Sirest, Apariment No., City, State, ZIP Code)}

TELEPHONE NUMBER ! VOR
{Include Area Coda) w

NOTIFY

YES NO

N/A

SECTICN V - DISTRIBUTION

ADDRESSES (Inciude 9-digit ZIP Code and telephone number.)

MILITARY SERVICE CENTRALREPOSITORY
HQDA, ODCS, G-3

attn: pamo-ooL (vis. | TENEGN

400 Armmy Pentagon

Washingt: 400
(703) 695W

LOCAL CONFINEMENT FACILITY {name and addross)

LAW ENFORCEMENT/SPECIAL INVESTIGATION

VICTIMMWITNESS (individual will raceive a copy with all other
victim/wilness addresses blacked out.)
002229
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HEADQUARTERS
MULTI-NATIONAL CORPS - IRAQ
BAGHDAD, IRAQ
APO AE 09342

REPLY TO
ATTENTION CF:

FICI-JA 30 October 2004
MEMORANDUM FOR Lieutenant ColoneI—Summary Court-Martial,
HHC, 57th Signal Battalion, Victory Base iraq APO AE

SUBJECT: Dismissal of Charges Without Prejudice

1. Upon acceptance of the accused’s plea to the Specification of Charge 11, | direct that
the remaining charges now referred be dismissed without prejudice, in accordance with

the offer to plead guilty approved by the Convening Authority.
2. The point of contact is the undersigned at DSN (318) 822- (Il

MAJ, JA
Trial Counsel
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FiCi-JA-AL 8 November 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR Commander, Multi-National Corps — Irag, Baghdad, lraq
APQO AE 09342

SUBJECT: Legal Review of Summary Court-Martial - U.S. v. SPC Megan M. Ambuhl

1. In accordance with Rule for Court-Martial 1112(a)(3), | have reviewed the subject
Summary Court-Martial. | have not acted in this case as an accuser, investigating
officer, member of the court-martial, military judge, or counsel, nor have | otherwise
acted on behalf of the prosecution or defense.

2. | make the following conclusions:

a. The court-matrtial had jurisdiction over the accused and each offense as to which
there was a finding of guilty that was not disapproved.

b. Each specification as to which there was a finding of guilty that has not been
disapproved stated an offense under the UCMJ.

¢. The sentence imposed was legal.

3. There are no allegations of error made in writing by the accused, nor have | identified
any errors in the case.

4. The above record of trial by Summary Court-Martial does not require further legal
review. The original copy of this legal review will be placed in the original Record of
Trial and a copy of this review will be provided to the accused.

5. POC is the undersigned at ([ NN ERENENRENERP: - D5\ 318-822-

CPT, JA
Administrative Law Attorney
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¥ .
RECORD OF TRIAL BY SUMMARY COURT-MARTIAL
1a. NAME OF ACCUSED {Last, First, MI} b. GRADE ¢, UNIT OR ORGANIZATION OF ACCUSED d. SsN
CRRANK | HHC, 16th Military Police Brigade {Airborne)
AMBUHL., Megan M. E-4 Victory Base, Irag APO AE 09342
23, NAME OF CONVENING AUTHORITY (Last, b. RANK c. POSITION 3. ORGANIZATION OF CONVENING AUTHORITY

First, M) III Corps,
METZ, Thomas, F. LTG Commander Victory Base, Irag, APO AE 09342

3a. NAME OF SUMMARY COURT-MARTIAL b, RANK c. UNIT OR ORGANIZATION OF SUMMARY COURT-MARTIAL

accuser, so state.} HHC, 57th Signal Battalion
LTC Victory Base, Irag APO AE 09342

{Check appropriate answer) YES | NO

g

4

At a preliminary proceeding held on 30 October ¥ W04 the summary court-martial gave the
accused a copy of the charge sheet.

X

5. At that preliminary proceeding the summary coust-martial informed the accused of the fellowing:

a. The fact that the charge(s) had been referred to a summary court-martial for trial and the date of referral.

B, The identity of the convening authority.

c. ‘The name(# of the accuser). .

d. The general nature of the charge(#},

¢. The accused's right to object to trial by summary court-martial.

f. The accused's right to inspect the allied papers and immediately available personnel records.

g. The names of the witnesses who could be called to testify and any documents or physical evidence which the
summary court-martial expected to introduce into evidence.

h. The accused’s right to cross-examine witnesses and have the summary court-martial cross-examine on behalf of the
accused.

i. The accused’s right to call witnesses and produce evidence with the assistance of the summary court-martial if
necessary. '

j. That during the trial the summary court-martial would not consider any matters, including statements previously
made by the accused to the summary court-martial, unless admitted in accordance with the Military Rules of
Evidence.

k. The accused's right to testify on the merits or to remain silent, with the assurance that no adverse inference would
be drawn by the summary court-martial from such silence.

1. If any findings of guilty were announced, the accused's right to remain silent, to make an unsworn statement, oral
or written or both, and to testify and to introduce evidence in extenuation or mitigation.

m. The maximum sentence which could be adjudged if the accused was found guilty of the offense(g} alleged.

n. The accused’s right to plead guilty or not guilty.

X[ X1 X | X] X [ X[ XXIX|X|IX|X|X|X

At the trial proceeding held on 30 Qctober ¥ 2004 | the accused, after being given a reasonable time to
decide, [0 did ©F did not object to trial by summary court-martial, 4
{Note: The SCM may ask the occused to initial this entry af the time the election is made.}

(Initial)

7a.

The accused ] was B4 was not represented by counsel. (If the accused was represented by counsel, complete b, ¢, and d below )

b. NAME OF COUNSEL {Last, First, Mi} c. RANK (If any}

d. COUNSEL QUALIFICATIONS

002238
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8. The accused was arraigned on the attached charge(#) and specification(#). The accused’s pleas and the findings reached are shown below:

CHARGE{# AND SPECIFICATION{®)

PLEA{Z)

FINDINGS {Including any exceptions and substitutions}

Charge II.

The Specification: Dereliction of Duty (20 OCT 03 -
1 DEC 03) '

Guilty

Guilty

/‘ﬁ I was advised of my right to request that
confinement be deferred and I was advised of my right
to submit written matters to the convening authority,
including 2 request for clemency and of the right to
request review by the Judge Advocate General.

M I acknowledge receipt of record of trial.

My LLLE

EGAN M. AMBUHL

9. The following sentence was adjudged:

To forfeit 1/2 months pay for one month and to be reduced to the grade of Private (E-2).

10. The accused was advised of the right to request
that confinement be deferred. (Note: When confinement
is adjudged. )

X ves 0O no

11. The accused was advised of the right to submit written matters to the

convening authority, including a request for clemency, and of the right to
request review by the Judge Advocate General.

M ves [ No

12, AUTHENTICAT

30 October 2004

Date

13. ACTION BY CONVENING AUTH@RITY

THOMAS F. METZ

Typed Name of Convening Authority

Lieutenant General

o Y freh

Signature of Convening Aufhy@

The sentence is approved and will be executed.

Commander

Position of Convening Authority

=— NOV6 2004

Date

: U U 2 Z 3@% v1.00




DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY REPORT OF RESULT OF TRIAL
For use of this form, see AR 27-10; the proponent agency is OTJAG

TO: Commander, Headquarters, lll Corps, Victory Base, Irag, APO AE 09342

1. Notification under R.C.M. 1101 and AR 27-10, paragraph 5-30 is hereby given in the case of the United States v.

Spegialist Megan M. Ambuht. _ ;Headquarters and Headquarters Company, 16th Military Police Brigade
{Airborne), APO AE 09342,

2. Trial by summary court-martial on 30 October 2004, at Baghdad, Iraq, convened by. lll Corps, US Army, Victory
Base, Iraq APO AE 09342,

3. Summary of offenses, pleas, and findings:

CH ARTUCMJ SPEC BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSES(S) 'PLEA FINDING
il 92 The Dereliction of duty (20 OCT 03— 1 DEC 03} G G

4. SENTENCE: (LTC- To forfelt 1/2 a months pay per month for one month and to be reduced to the
grade of Private {E-2).

5. Date sentence adjudged and effective date of any forfeiture or reduction in grade {YYYYMMDD): 20041030
(See UCMJ Articles 57-58b and R.C.M. 1101.) 20041113.

8. Contents of pretrial agreement concerning sentence, if any: Attached
7. Number of days of presentence confinement, if any: N/A.

8. Number of days of judge-ordered administrative credit under Article 13, or for presentence confinement or restriction
found tantamount to confinement, if any: N/A.

9. Total presentence confinement credit toward post-trial confinement: None.

SSN(s) of companj - d, if anv: SPC
i, SPC : R

11. DNA processing IAW 10 U.S.C. § 1585 is (not) required.

12. Conviction(s) do(es} require sex offender registration 1AW 42 U.S.C. § 14071.

CF.  Unit Commander SJA TDS MJ Posi-trial
Confinement Facility SPCMA CID Supporting Finance Activity
TC: N/A - CR; N/A
NAME I : SIGNATU
RANK BRANC
LTC SC
DA FORM 4430, SEP 2002 DA FORM 4430-R, MAY 87, 1S OBSOLETE USAPA V1.00ES
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AFZA-AP-HHC : 2 November 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD
SUBJECT: Wavier of Clemency Mafters

1. I understand that Lieutenant Colonel— the summary court-martial officer,
adjudged a sentence of forfeiture of 1/2 a months pay for one month and reduction to Private

(E-2)._Mi

2. Tunderstand that I may consult with counsel; and, in conjunction with counsel, submit
clemency matter to the convening authority. _M@-

3. 1 having full knowledge of my right to submit matters, and after consulting with my defense

counsel have elected to waive that right. M4

MEGAN M. AMBUHL
SPC, USA
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RE: Result of Trial (UNCLASSIFIED) Page 1 of |

Kary Jared F SGT MNC-| SJA Claims

Sent:  Monday, November 01, 2004 6:12 PM |
To: GT CJTF7-SJA Claims; v

Ce: ST e

Subject: RE: Result of Trial (UNCLASSIFIED)

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED
Caveats: NONE

!
'.
i
|

The defense does not intend to submit any matters to the convening authority or to appeal the findings and sentence of the
SCM officer in U.S. v. Ambuhl.

S
CPT, JA
Trial Defense Counsel

SPC Ambuhl Team

If you wish to submit matters to the convening autherity please submit them
to me NLT 1400 6 NOV 04 Baghdad tims.

<<Result_A.pdf>>

[ will serve a hard copy to SPC Ambuhl and have her sign the result ASAP.
Very Respectfully,

SG

US§ Ammy, Paralegal

DSN 31 s-szzi

Classification; UNCLASSIFIED
Caveats: NONE

002242
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CHARGE SHEET

T, PERSONAL DATA
. NAME OF ACOUSED (Lo, First M) 7. SSN _ 3. GRADE OR RANK |4 BAY GRAGE
AMBUHL, Megan M. , ' SPC E-4
%, UNIT OR ORGANIZATION ' ]

5. CURRENT SERVICE
Headquarters and Headquarters Company, 16th Military Police Brigade | = "NTALDATE | 5, TERM
(Airborne), lil Corps, Victory Base, iraq AP AE 09342

[ 28 Jan 02 8 years
T. PAY FER MONTH

) 8. NATURE OF RESTRAINT OF AGCUSED | 6. DATE(S) IMPOSED
8, BASIC L. SEAFOREIGN DUTY ¢ TOIAL
$1,638.30 $100.00 $1,738.30 None N/A
il. CHARGES AND SPECIFICATIONS
10. CHARGE § VIOLATION OF THE UCMJ, ARTICLE 81

THE SPECIFICATION: in that Specialist Megan M. Ambuhl, U.S. Army, did, at or near Baghdad
Central i ki bu Ghraij ut 23 O ire with Staff

cialist
and Private First Clas o
ense under the Uniform Military Justice, to wit: maltreatment of subordinates,
and in order {o effect i piracy the said Specialist Ambuh{ did participate in a
photograph with PFWW tied a leash around the neck of a detainee and led
the detainee down the corridor with the ieash around his neck.

CHARGE lI: VIOLATION OF THE UCMJ, ARTICLE 82

THE SPECIFICATION: In that Specialist Megan M. Ambuhl, U.S. Army, who knew, of her duties
at or near Baghdad Central Correctional Facility, Abu Ghraib, iraq, from on of about 20 October
2003 to on or about 1 December 2003, was derelict in the performance of those duties in that she

willfully failed to protect lraqi detainees from abuse, cruelty and maltreatment, as it was her duty to
do.

(SEE CONTINUATION SHEET)
1ll. PREFERRAL
15, NAME OF ACCUSER st i} b. GRADE ¢. ORGANIZATION OF ACCUSER

Q-3 HHC, 16" MP Bde {Abn} APO AE (8342
I ® :ngz AR '0Y

AFFIDAVIT: Before me, the undersigned, authorized by law to administer oaths in cases of this character,
personhally appeared the above named accuser this _ D% day of __pViaeh A - BN
and signed the foregoing charges and specifications under oath that he/she is a person subject to the Uniform
Code of Military Justice and that he/she either has personal knowledge of or has investigated the matters set
forth therein and that the same are true to the best of histher knowledge and belief.

4_” HHC, XVl Abn Corps
Omanization of Qfficer

C-3 ___Trial Counsel
Grade Qfficial Capacity to Administer Qath
{Sea R.C.M. 307{h} = mus! bo & commissioned oficer)

DD FORM 458, MAY 2000 PREVIOUS EDITION 18 OBSOLETE.
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12.

on_2¢ Mardh ooy . the accused was informed of the charges against him/her and of
the name(s} of The accuser(s} known to me (See R.C.M. 308 (8)). {See RC.M. 308 if nofification cannot be made.)

HHC, 16" MP Bde (Abn) APO AE 08342

Orgonizalion of immediate Commarnder

Typed Nams of immadiale Commandar

0-3

| Sig!um

R T
V. RECEIFT BY SUMMARY COURT-MARTIAL. CONVENING AUTHORITY

13

The sworn charges were received at 1¥95 haurs, 2 Mk M st Headquarters, 16t Military

Designation of Command or
Police Brigade {Airborne) APO AE 08342
Officar Exercising Swmmaty Courd-Martial Jurisdicticn (See R.CM. 403}
FOR THE *
. __Commanding _
Typad Name of Officer Officlal Capacity of Officer Signing
0-6
, V. REFERRAL; SERVIGE OF CHARGES
153 DESIGNATION OF COWMAND OF CONVENING AUTHORITY | b. PLAGE . DATE (YYYYMMCOD)
Victory Base, Iraq
Il Corps , APQ AE 09342-1400 20041028

Referred for tralto the __ Sumumary _ court-mariial convened by _this detail of Lieutenant Colon_

! *
lthe summary court-martial officer on

28 Ociober . 2004 . subject to the following instructions:  None
By Command of Lieutenant General Metz
Comand or Qndar

Chief, Criminal Law Division
Qfficial Capacily of Offficer Signing

15.

On 29 actefe? ¢ oot .1 {caused to be) served & copy hereof on (gach of) the above named accused,

MA.J
Grade or Rank of Trial Counael

Yin 8me Gl

FOOTNOTES: 1— When an appropriale commander $gns personally, inapplicabie words are stricken.
2 — Sea R.C.M. 80178} conceming instructions. If none. 30 slalo.

‘DD FORM 458 (BACK), MAY 2000
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CONTINUATION SHEET DD Form 458, AMBUHL, Megan M., SPC, !
HHC, 16th MP Bde (Abn), lIf Corps, Victory Base, iraq APQ AE 09342

item 10 (continued)
CHARGE 1Hl: VIQLATION OF THE UCMJ, ARTICLE 93

THE SPECIFICATION: In that Specialist Megan M. Ambuhl, U.S. Army, at or near
Baghdad Central Correctional Facility, Abu Ghraib, [raq, on or about 8 November 2003,

did maltreat several Iraqi detainees, persons subject to her orders, by watching naked
detainees in a pyramid of human bodies.

CHARGE 1V: VIOLATION OF THE UCMJ, ARTICLE 134

THE SPECIFICATION: in that Specialist Megan M. Ambuhi, U.S. Army, did, at or near
Baghdad Central Correctional Facility, Abu Ghraib, Iraq, on or about 8
ongfully it an i ¢t with lraqi i ant
pecialist and Private First
y observing a group of detainees masturbating, or
attempting to masturbate, while they were located in a pubiic corridor of the Baghdad
Central Correcticnal Facility, with other soldiers who photographed or watched the
detainees’ actions.
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HEADQUARTERS
MULTHNATIONAL CORPS - IRAQ
BAGHDAD, IRAQ
APO AE 08342

REPLY TO
ATTENTION OF:

FICI-JA

MEMORANDUM FOR Lieutenant Colonel
HHC, 57th Signal Battalion, Victory Base Irag APO AE

SUBJECT: Dismissal of Charges Without Prejudice

30 October 2004

Summary Court-Martial,

1. Upon acceptance of the accused's plea to the Specification of Charge 1, | direct that
the remaining charges now referred be dismissed without prejudice, in accordance with
the offer to plead guilty approved by the Convening Authority.

2. The point of contact is the undersigned at DSN (318) s22{JI

MAJ,

Trial Counsel

002246



UNITED STATES

V.

AMBUHL, MEGAN M.

SPC, U.S. Army

Headquarters & Headguarters Company
16th Military PoliGe Brigade {(Airborne)
I Corps, Victory Base, lraq

APO AE 08342

12 October 2004

EXTENUATION AND MITIGATION

COMES NOW the accused, by Counsel, and provides the following
information to be used as extenuation and mitigation evidence at her summary
court-martial:

1. SPC Megan Ambuhl is pleading guilty to one charge of dereliction of duty

for not reporting the activities of MP and M! personnel at Abu Ghraib Prison. She

has agreed to testify truthfuily at all subsequent courts-martial relating to said

activities.

2. The uncoﬁtroverted evidence is that she did not pariicipate in any of the

activities alleged to have occurred at the prison. Exhibit 1 is a partial transcript of

the BCD special court-martial of SPC—a co-accused. SPC
-agreed to plead guilty and to testify truthfully against his co-accused.

On page 44, lines 10-14, the Military Judge asked SPC-ovho

participated in the conspiracy to maltreat detainees at the prison and received

this response:

MJ: ...did all these peopie (Sergeam-Sergean- Corporal
-Specialis- Specialist-and PFC- participate in

the abuse of these detainees?

002247



ACC: Negative, Your Honor.

MJ: Who didn't?

ACC: Specialist Ambuhl did not.

Emphasis added.

SPC eiterates this fact later in his guilty plea at page 45, lines 17-20, and
page 46, lines 8-13. The Military Judge twice makes SPC-agree that SPC

Ambuhl is not part of the conspiracy—*Let's put Specialist Ambuhl to the side for

a second. These six pther people were conspiring to malfreat these

subordinates. Do you understand that? And the subordinates in this case are

the detainees.”
ACC: Yes, Your Honor.
ld. Emphasis added.
PrC R Corpo2| QP friend and the soldier
depicted in photographs as holding the leash, confirms that SPC Ambuhi did not

participate in the abuse. In her 5 May 2004 Sworn Statement PFC -was

asked whether she saw SPC Ambuhl strike any of the detainees. She

responded, “No, she rarely paricipated, she really wasn't part of all this.” See

Exhibit 2, page 3 of 6. Emphasis added.
Finally, SGT—a witness but not an aécused, states that,
“SPC Ambuhl at no time in any way became involved in nor did she engage in

any of the interrogations or alleged abuse.” See Exhibit 3, 11 October 2004,

Statement Addition. Emphasis added.
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3. On 2 May 2004 the accused, the undetsigned civilian defense counsel,
JAG CPT _nd a civilian interpreter assigned o the JAG office
visited the prison to interview detainees who previously had provided witness
statements to ClD. Every remaining detainee was interviewed, Without
exception each detainee stated that SPC Ambuhl treated them well and was both
liked and respected. See Exhibit 4, personal testimonials of the detainees.

4. Exhibit 5 contains letters from family and friends of SPC Ambuhl attesting
fo her good character. They uniformly state that she is a caring and patriotic
person. Many letters describe her as a shy, non-confrontational person. Exhibit
5 also contains persenal photographs of her family and activities.

5. on 31 August 2004 LTC {25 designated by the convening
authority as an expert to assist SPC Ambuhl's defense counsel.’ LTC- '
conducted a comprehensive psychological assessment of SPC Ambuhl, the facts
and cir__cumstances surrounding her dereliction charge, and the mitigating factors
pertaining to her actions. LTC -report is found at Exhibit 8.

It is important to note that LTC.nformed SPC Ambuht that she was
appointed by the government and that any report that she issued was not
confidential. id. at numbersd paragraph 1. SPC Ambuhi understood and
cooperated fully.

While neither condoning nor justifying SPC Ambuhl's dereliction in not
reporting what had occutred, LTC-report places the inaction in cohtext in
the “Findings” section of her report. Id. at pages 3-5. Her primary findings are

stated on page 4 at subsection 4¢:
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¢. SPC Ambuhl's decision not to report alleged detaines abuse at
Abu Ghraib BCCF clearly appears to be related to her lack of
training as a corrections officer, a lack of understanding of proper
procedures regarding treatment of detainees, and perceived
influences from civilian and military intelligence agencies who she
assumed had authority of the hard site. In addition, she was clearly
a junior member of her work group, and despite her rank, had been
in the Army only a short period of time (she enlisted as a college
graduate). There are nho indications that she participated in any
incidents of abuse, as corroborated by detainee interviews and
other witness statements. Based on knowledge gained through her
participation in her legal proceedings, SPC Ambuhl has expressed
remorse for not reporting actions that she witnessed.
8. Exhibit 7 is a 1 August 2002 memorandum from the Depariment of Justice
Office of Legal Counsel to Albsrio R. Gonzales, Counsel to the President of the
United States. It is part of the packet of material released by the White House

earlier this year. _

Although SPC Ambubhl did not participate in any of the alleged activities,
the context for her inaction is important. LTC-report has provided some of
that context. This memorandum provides some additional context, [tis
uncontroveried that both MP and Mi personnel participated in the activities at
Abu Ghraib. i has been reported widely in the press that GEN Miller in
September 2003 advised that Ml should use MPs at the prison fo “set the
conditions” for successiul interrogations. GEN Miller was using his experience at
Guantanamo Bay as his point of reference. Finally, it is uncontroverted that

interrogators with experience in Afghanistan and Guantanamo Bay were brought

to the priscn in the Fall of 2003.
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It should be noted that, accepting the fact that the actions depicted in the
photographs at the prison were wrong, the Attorney General of the United States

stated otherwise. In the conclusion to the memorandum it states:

For the foregoing reasons, we conclude that toriure as defined in
and proscribed by Sections 2340-1340A, covers only exireme acts.
Severe pain is generally of the kind difficult for the victim to endure.
Where the pain is physical, it must be of an intensity akin to that
which accompanies serious physical injury such as death or organ
fallure. Severe mental pain requires suffering not just at the
moment of infliction but it also requires lasting psychological harm,
such as seen in mental disorders like posttraumatic stress disorder.
Additionally, such severe mental pain can arise only from the
predicate acts listed in Section 2340. Because the acts inflicting
torture are extreme, there is significant range of acts that though
they might constitute cruel, inhuman, or degrading treatment or
punishment fail to rise to the leve! of torture.

Further, we conclude that under the circumstances of the current
war against al Qaeda and its allies, application of Secticn 2340A to
interrogations undertaken pursuant to the President's Commander-
in-Chief powers may be unconstitutional. Finally, even if an
interrogation method might violate Section 23404, necessity or self-
defense could provide justifications what would eliminate any
criminal liability.

Thus, it is a matter in mitigation that SPC Ambuhl, with no corrections or
interrogation training, would be reluctant to question or report activities
conducted by Ml and her superior non-commissioned officers. As the{jjJjJJf
statement indicates, even her officers were reluctant to question Ml. See Exhibit
3, bage 2, numbered paragraph 6 (27 May 2004).

Conclusion:

The defense would ask the summary court-martial officer to consider the

factors above, the fact that SPC Ambuht's unit has returned to the United States

months ago, the restrictions on her activities since March 2004, and her
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cooperation with the Government, and givé a sentence that does not include

imprisonment.

Civitian Defdnse Counsel -

Respectfully submitted,

SPC MEGAN AMBUHL
By Counsel
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Exhibit 1
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RECORD OF TRIAL

OF

q . SPC
(Mame: Last, First, Middle Initial} {Social Security Number) {Rark)
HHC, 16th MP Bde (ABN)
ITI Corps .8, Army Victory Base, Iraq
(Unit/Command Name) {Branch of Service) (Station or Ship)

BY
SPECIAL (BCD) COURT-MARTIAL
Convened by: Commander
{Title of Convening Authority}
Headquarters, ITI Corps
(Unit/Command of Convening Authority)
Tried at
Baghdad, Irag on 19 May 2004

(Place or Places of Trial) (Date or Dates of Trrial)
INDEX RECORD
Article 39(a) Sessions R-2
Introduction of Counsel R-2
Challenges R-N/A
Arraignment R-8
Motions R-N/A
Pleas R-11
Prosecution Evidence R-14
Defense Evidence R-N/A
Instructions on Findings R-N/A
Charge(s} dismissed R-N/A
Findings R-72
Prosecution Evidence R-73
Defense Evidence R-96
Sentence R-126
Appellate Rights Advisement R-125
Proceedings in Revision R-NA
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TESTIMONY

DIRECT/ CROSS/ COURT
NAME OF WITNESS REDIRECT RECROSS '

PROSECUTION:

75 80

82 93
DEFENSE: '

100/104 102

104 107
Accused (unsworn) 108
COURT:
None.

EXHIBITS ADMITTED IN EVIDENCE
NUMBER OR PAGE WHERE
LETTER DESCRIPTION OFFERED ADMITTED
i Stipulation of fact i4 17
2 POR and 2-1 73 73
3 Magazine article 74 [Net R.74]
A Stipulation of expected testimony (CP 96 o7
B Stipulation of expected testimony (8G 06 97
C 15-6 Investigation 98 98
D Proof of employment 98 98
E Good soldier book 99 99
APPELLATE EXHIBITS

I Request for military judge alone 7
H Offer to plead guilty 53
III Quantum 53
IV Post-trial and appellate rights 123
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10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
i8
19
20
21

22

MJ: You mentioned earlier that, at least now, Specialist-

was there?

ACC: Yes, Your Honor.

M7: and sergeant (R

ACC: Yes, Your Honor.

MJF: So the group that was there for most of the time when you

were there were you, Sergeant- Sergeant- Corporal

- Specialist- Specialist Ambuhl and PFC-

ACC: Correct, Your Honor.

MJ: ©Now, when you turned the hall, did all these people
participéte in the abuse of these detainees?

ACC: Negative, Your Honor.

MJ: Wwho didn’t?

ACC: Specialist Ambuhl did not. She was upstairs. From what T
understood, she was actually in charge of the female and juvenile
side of that area. She was upstairs, and Sergeant First Class

MI: 2And correct me if I'm wrong, I believe you told me you saw

ACC: Correct, Your Honor.

MJ: Okay, as I go through these names, tell me what you saw

each of these individuals do. Sergeant —
u | G02256



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

ACC: Strike a detainee in the chest, Your Honor.

MJ: Sergeant -

ACC: Stomped on hands and toes, Your Honor.

MJ: Corporal -

ACC: Punching a detainee, Your Honor.

MJ: Specialist -

ACC: Write the word “rapist” on an inmate’s leg, Your Honor.

w: ana erc QENND

ACC: PFC -was teking photos and laughing.

MI3: BAnd she was also the cne....

ACC: Stomping on the hands and toes.

MJ: So, you turned the corner here and you escorted your
detainee in there. and you told me earlier, is you didn’t know what

was going to happen, but as you get in there, you see what they’re

going to do.
ACC: Yes, Your Honor.

MJ: And let’'s put Specialist Ambuhl to the side for a second,
but the other six and you, remember I talked to you earlier about
what a conspiracy is?

ACC: Yes, Your Honor.

MI: And a conspiracy can be like two people getting together or
three people, and saying, “Here’'s our plan to rob the bank. You do

45
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11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

this, you do that,” and then kind of talk it out and work it out and
then they may or may not go rob the bank. But that agreement’s in
words. There’s also a way to get an agreement just by actions, to
join in common actiong indicating that each individual member of the
conspiracy are all agreeing with the object of the conspiracy. Do

you understand what I‘m talking about there?

ACC: Yes, I do, Your Honor.

MJy: And in this case, you're charged with conspiring with these
six other people. And again, let’s put Specialist Ambuhl to the side
for a second. These six other pecple were conspiring to maltreat
these subordinates. Do you understand that? AaAnd the subordinates in
this case are the detainees,

ACC: Yes, Your Honor.

MJ: Now, before you walked in there, did you ever discuss doing

this with them or anything like that?

ACC: Negative, Your Honor.

MJ: But once you got in there, by yvour actions and their

actions, do you believe and admit that you formed an'agreement to

maltreat these detainees?

ACC: Yes, I do, Your Honor.

4 002258



AFFIDAVIT

- 1,— have read or have had read to me this statement which begins on

page 1 and ends on page 5. ! fully understand the contents of the entire statement made by me. The
statement is true. Ihave initialed all corrections and have initialed the bottom of each page
containing the statement. I have made this statement freely without hope of benefit or reward,
without threat of punishment, and without coercion, unlawful influence or unlawful inducement.

Witness #1:

8”7"Mi! Q !f:&!

Loy Boico s 38 3i0

Subscribed and sworn before me, a

law to administer
y of May 2004,

Witness #2:

(Authority to Administer Oath)
INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATMNT- PAGE 5 OF 5 PAGES
DA Form 2823-E |
- FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY
- T . 00952
002459
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1e/11/200¢ 12:48  3er7o D WESTERN MD INVESTIGA PAGE B2
11 Oct 04
Statement Addition:

- or:cr SGT. With the 372 MP Company hereby make this
statement concerning SPC Megan Argbubl. This is an addition to my statement that has
already been made on 27 May 04.

Ol}h the night of the alleged abuse incident that | wittessed which was on or about October
257,

On this night in question SPC Ambuh] a2t no tizne in 2oyway became involved in nor did
she engage in any of the interrogations or alieged abuse.

I personally did not witness this soldier (SPC Ambuhl) come out on the fer to even waich
what was going on,

SPC Ambuhl from what T know about her coming from our original Unit the 352% M@
Company would net knowing or willfully in a sound state of mind abusc detainees.

Very Respectfully,
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ATZMPYSC - L 27May2004
| MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD « | ,
., SUBIECT: Sratement of SGI_H&dquaﬂera;mdﬁud'quaﬁm Ii.t.'.\mp'nny, -

. Garison Forf Lee, Visginda -

-
1y ]

1. Mynameis SﬁTmm’md Hudqnmgﬂ Comjany, Garison Fort ( :
Les, Virginia. On 24 September 01, I wasaskigned to.352% MP 'nmmm‘?‘mﬁﬂm o
Gilhereburg, Masyiand. On 23 Fibaary 2003, L was favolunmilyensferred 10372 MP N
. Company, Cymberland, Micylatd, On 24 Fehnsany 2003, wy enitwas tnobilized aud on 27 y
Febrisary 2004, Y azvived 2t Fort Les, Virginha, On 16 May 2003, menbers of 372" MP
Compeny deplayed from Fort Lee, Virgitia to Camp Arifjan, Kuwait. Tremained &t Fort Lesin
-, rdet to wodesgo surgery. On 21 $eptember 2003, afYer the Surgiery, I deployed fram Fort Lee and
- amived &t Camp Arifjan; Kniwale, On 30 Septembuic 2003, 1 lef Camyp Asifjah and on 1 Outober
7003,  vived at the Baghdad Cotrectiona] Facility (BCF/Aby Ghreib). [ was assignéd to 3n
platoot of 372" MP Company, "My duty assigument wes Teamt Tivader. My missions jncluded
eseom of detainess fremn BCF to vardous couts in Baghdad, as well 2 escorts of ViPsand -
_ contractors, My quistess were locited <5 3™ glatson building, approximitely 400 metersaway
© * Bom the BCF hard-site, 1was ndt detafied to condact any missionsat the BCE hardesite, -

3, Diring the last-week of Qctober at approximately 2200 hotirs Twerit over to: the BCF hard-slte -
it order to spei with SPC Uy driver. 1 found SPCYNIR: Tier 1A spesking with his -
pullmtei;ﬂl?!{-%ml;apppdhqhﬂd Tiér 1A, 1ohserved to {3) service meribes (he oot
firstservice membet wore:black PT dhorts, brovwn t-shitt, ani shower.shoas; the sscond service ¢
siepber wore DCUpants and brown tshix), Ipesceived both servics membere to be miliucy
intelligerice (D). Tamw both, MI soldiers handonff two (2} asked Eugl detuinees 1o hebas of
. eslls onoppuosite sidfs. {then witnessed the sattia MI goldints hindoui¥the detairnees together,

* fucé 16.$ace, The MY soldier dressed in'black PT shorls andibzawn t-ghirt approached meand -
/" geked mie in-g sarcastio tane of voige: “Do you think we crossed the Jine?™ or Words 3o that effec,
 xesporrled: “7 anipot sure, yow dre MI” or-wurds o it effect. TheMI soldier then stated that

" théywete inwrrogating 2 detaineds and seid; “We row Wit we aré doing™ or woids to that

1

1

. 3. Bubmquénily, both VI soldiers walked back to the detainees, separated ind themre
cuffed thiem 1 the bare, The MI soldies-wearing FT fhorty tappad otie of theidetaitiees. oo hix
" uteacks with 8 plastic water bottliy: THen both MI soldiers re-euifed the'detainecs topether, .
Throughout this treRlen, botk M soldiers, vis.an inturpreier, opdered the/dotdineesto confass,
Whien the detathces failed to coopirate, hoth Mi sokiiers yéiied st them and ordered CP
~ to'yelf at the detaindes. Atthistine anobiver M soldtér (wearing DCY pants and browa t-shitt] -
St inand the othees seemed 1 look to fim with respest dixd sought hits spproval: -J asked him: _
“Is this hoWw you interrogats detaine¢s?™ of warde o that effEer. ‘The M seidier responded “there e
tire Stffsrent wigk to get it.done,” or wordé to that effest. The MY soldiers eseottad the naksd con
detoinees round TieF YA, T : ¥ B -

oo
L
"t

P
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*

ATIM-DPS-C :

suBIECT: Satement of SGT (I cedonarete and Headquarters Gompany,
Garrisen Fort Les, Virginia

4, Ope of the M1 soldiers pointed o the naked dataines and gajd, “These areths people whe .
'rapuda‘ﬂmabéy.“‘ﬁé wiseds to thit affect. Then 8 T hefeve, escortedathird
" . detaines to Tier 1A, SSG that (hls detaines assizted in therape by holding down
' ghe victim, One of the M soldiers then told the #ifrd detdines to get undressed like the other
o, The new detaines refiised. "The Ml soldiers proveeded to yell at the detaines. Theen; oo of
she ML soldiers ordered  te]] the detainec to get undressed. The 1hird detainos
" undressed #fter led §t Bir. Then tha M soldfers ardered all three detbiness t low
erawl oy the ficor. When the dataizess atterpled to arch Up, two of the MI zoldiers put pressure,

in tire middle of thelr hacks mmd yolled atthem t get dowa. TwoMIsoldimﬁaancui&dths "
dewsinees together. o : .

5. Aferthe detainées wese agaln handsuffed, T walled over and seked the detaince 1 tell the M1
soldiers what they needed know- st that I would try to make the M1 soidiers atop, The dotaines
. tated, fhrough the interpretél thit ho would not confess to sametliing that e did notdo. 1 :
suraed to theolder M1 soldier snd-asked hin with a raised voive: “Did you all ever considerthat
thay puys tre innocent?” or woriis to that effect. The Ml soldier respondeds “I've been doltig this |
Tosper than you've been fn the niilitaxy, You know, sefgeant, tey are guilty,” o wards so-that
effect:-] thiew turned fo walk out-and the M soldier wearing biack PT shorts started 10 gprickle -
 water on 6 datathees from his water botte, Wiiife T vas leaving the tier, 14lso obeerved ope of .
the MI soldiers ori thé upper tier tdssing & nerf ball towards e detainees. Jaigonoticed SPCT . 1
qsmtﬂng_in the distance snd taking photos. 1wentback tomy L3A «t approximetely 2
. 2230, Bythe tirne ] yeiumed to-my LSA, everyome was alrexdy asleep, . .
" , ; ;

§. Followipg miorairg, 8t approxinasely 0530, Llong with SPCEMd SFCMMRI=A she
BCF o missionits eséort dstaintes to Rusafs Cowirthouse. After completing e mison, st
. approxlsutely 1600, Twerit to my platoon fesder, 21T QEIInd ] dzscribed o him the
. Inteident ] witnessed the prévious sight. 1 informod 21T WPz M soldiers were .
jthervdgating naked detiinass, 2LT « “Thay ars M1 and they ars in chacge iet them
 dothelr job," o Words to that effect, Tthen beguto question 2L'T SENIIKbour who was in
charge of the facility. I furthér voisedmy concerns about our missien and otgarizefion. 2LT
QP e cknéwiedgad my aoimplaint andiindiated thar he witl addreas it Approximately AR
dne-wesk later CPL jvéd & written cousseling stuternent faor CPT (NP uze of
excessive force, TP Srmed ms ghout the counstling statément and ! overheard CPT
divating that he'coutseled CPL JJIIJIIor use of excessive fore.

7, Approxirmitely cne wesk priot to the incidents T described abdve, Ispoke with CPLUNEND
- -anthY notced that CPL oice was higurse, 1 asked CPLUMEPwhy he was hoarse., CPL
- ihat Q@A ind Ml wage risking him, yell at detainees 2 do things that he felt were
wrong. CPLIIII4 nat provide any. details. 1101 hit “then din’t 8o it.” or words w that
elfect:, Hestated thut M1 soldiess would ]} himyafter an, #xplosion fhiat thers are Amerioans out
. gﬁim%mmenhcﬁ%m;mm mﬁ:ﬁnm deaindes &;mmm A:%artbm .
il die, t.?ﬂun_ me = wis taking picturés o protect himself. Ttald CPL
" take titis desueup lijs ckixin of gommand. We - pre :
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.. ATZM-DFS-C . ' . l
SUBSECT: Statementt of SG TN esiqusitoss and Headruarters Campaxdy,
Garrison Fort Lee, Vizginiz . c :

8, Tretorped 1o Tier LA approximately soe week Iater 0 orderto infbom one of the detainees of

Hie relaasd date, AT this tine, ] did nat chiserve smy uusual canduat by the M{ personnel. This

wasthe lest time T wentto Tier 14 ' ' L . )

9. In November 2003, while in Inig, 1 txpezivaced post-sigery complisations, On 2 Decersber

2003, my urit received a Red Cross ressage infonming me that niy father experiencedavely -

serfos isart yitack, Iwas phaced oo Emergency Leave statuesand retuned to Dallas, Texason

. % Yecenyber 2003, Subsequontly, I retussied to Fort Les, Virginia oo or sbout 17 December 2003 .
in order to underya medical procedures. S : ’

10. In sddition tu-:_msmisﬁns anon thi.spot cnum&un, I reported the shove-mentioned incldent
to my platoon leader, 1T MNP After returning to Fort Lee, V a Linformed the:
following, amang tthers, of my concems regarding the incidert 1 ed at BCF:

Gheplatn 0 TC) BPGa Ly~ | December 2003 .
18 (HHC Ganigon, Fortlet) =~ - . . Desermber 2003

€ Gatrisor, Fort Lee) , Diecember 2003
DIC Mental Hezlth Clrie, Port Lee) Taxury 2004
P Oeputy Ciefof SBEE, USAR) . Matoh 2004
: ' = ' March 2004
7 School, Fort Les) March 2004 -
Chaplain {COL. ott L.ee) f " April 2004
M. . AQ, Fort Log) ] © Aprit 2004
- V.8, House of Represantatives Avmed Services Comnsittee: Apnl 2004
. POC is thé undecsigaec STINEINND |
. SGILJA
| 3
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ST1 CERTIFICATION

schroiber Translations, me, 1118 1S 10 certify that the attached English fanguage document,

51 Monros Stroet identified as Personal Testimonies, is a true and accurate

Seite 101 translation of the original Arabic language document to the

Rackville, MD 20850 3
best of our knowledge and belief.

P: 301‘42-
F. 301'42- Executed this 18th day
of May, 2004

Schreiber Translations, Inc.
51 Monroe Street, Suite 101

| Rockville, Maryland 20850
' ATA Member 212207

Schreiber Translations, Inc. uses all available measures to ensurs the accuracy of sach

translation, but shall not be held liable for damages due to error or negligence in
translation or franscription.

transiation@schraibarnet.com

wwrescheolbernaticom | 102269



I, hereby attest that prison guard, Megan treated the prisoners in solitary confinement with
dignity and that we are much better after she has taken chargs. May god be witness to the
veracity of my testimony.

[THegible signature]
05-02-2004
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In the Name of God

In Mabhjar, T never had any problems with Maggie; the American lady, she was a very nice
person in the prison and treated all prisoners, whether male and female, in a good manner. She
always talked with the prisoners in a polite and pleasant way and if they had any complaints, she
would make every effort to solve their problems. I never saw an inhuman behavior on her behalf,
and never had any problems with her. Whenever [ needed food she would bring it to me with a

bottle of water, and would even give me cigarettes. She treated all the prisoners in the same way
and most prisoners liked this American girl and respected her.

S b
/signature/
02/05/2004
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“In the Name of God The Compassionate, the Mexciful”

I, hereby attest that guard Megan treated all prisoners correctly including myself. We had no
problem with her. She treated us well and was very amicable with everybody.

{Iitegible signature}
05-02-2004
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I, hereby attest that prison guard Maki was one of the best police officers in our jail together with

Ofﬁcer- Mr..and Mr-all of whom dealt with us in a humane manner. They

provided us with everything we needed, especially, Maki who used fo bring us medicines and
mattresses. She also helped us when the US Police had ns punished in solitary confinement, 1
testify that this Iady is incapable of punishing a sole.

[Ilegible signature}

05-02-2004
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My name is _and I testify that Mickey was nice to everybody in

confinement. One day she was carrying some canned food and I asked her if I can have some but
she refused because it was pork. T have never witnessed her offend anyone.

May god be witness to the veracity of my testimony.

[Signed:—

05-02-2004
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Mika is a kind person and, during my stay in solitary confinement, I have never seen her punish
anyone. She used to be nice and to take the Qura’an from one cell to the other so that we can all
recite. When she brought the American foodstuff, she was always willing to exchange one bag
for another to suit the prisoners’ taste. Once she brought me Iragi food tl;at I longed for badly

and she came all the way across some 30 cells in order to hand it to me. I respect her for her
pleasant attitude with the detainees.

[IHegible signature]
05-02-2004
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REMOVED BATES PAGES 2283 - 2297
(RECORD OF TRIAL - SPC MEGAN M. AMBUHL)

(15 TOTAL PAGES)

DOCUMENTS CONSIST OF PERSONAL LETTERS WRITTEN TO THE
CONVENING AUTHORITY BY FAMILY AND FRIENDS ON BEHALF
OF SPC AMBUHL, WHICH WERE DETERMINED TO BE
NONRESPONSIVE TO PLAINTIFF’S FOIA REQUEST

A2A81A
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OFFICE OF THE CLERK OF COURT
US ARMY JUDICIARY
ARLINGTON, VIRGINIA 22203-1837

THE RECORD OF TRIAIL HAS BEEN REVIEWED FOR RELEASE UNDER THE
PROVISICNS OF THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT. THE DOCUMENTI[S]
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS HAS [HAVE] BEEN REMOVED FROM THIS COPY OF
THE RECORD BECAUSE THE RELEASE WOULD BE IN VIOLATION OF THE DOD
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT PROGRAM, DOD 5400.7-R, EXEMPTION

(b) (6}

Memorandum - Psychological Assessment
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REMOVED BATES PAGES 2301 - 2346
(RECORD OF TRIAL — SPC MEGAN M. AMBUHL)

(46 TOTAL PAGES)

DOCUMENTS CONSIST OF A MEMORANDUM FOR ALBERTO R.
GONZALES RE: STANDARDS OF CONDUCT FOR INTERROGATION
UNDER 18 USC 2340-2340-A, DATED AUGUST 1, 2002

MIT OFFItE OF LEGAL
AND REFERRED TO Sl NN C OUNSEL ON 31

MARCH 2004

2360 A



DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
UNITED STATES ARMY TRIAL DEFENSE SERVICE
REGION 1X, BAGHDAD FIELD OFFICE
CAMP VICTORY, IRAQ
APO AE 09242

REPLY TO
ATTENTION OF:

FICI-JA-BFO ' 29 October 2004

MEMOREANDUM FOR LTC_ Summary Court-Martial Officer, Headquarters
and Headquarters Company, 57" Signal Battalion, APO AE 09342

SUBJEQT: Request for Confinement Credit -- United States v. SPC Megan M. Ambuhl

1. The aLcused, through counsel, respectfuily requests that the Summary Court-Martial Officer
grant SPC Ambuhl 28 days of credit toward any approved sentence of confinement. SPC
Ambuhl ks entitled to 15 days credit for restriction tantamount to confinement, 8 days for a
violation, of Rule for Courts-Martial (R.C.M.) 305(i), and 5 days for the command’s violation of
Article IB Uniform Code of Military Justice (U.C.M.J.). At a minimum, the defense requests

that you ¢onsider the restrictions unduly imposed on SPC Ambuh! as extenuation and mitigation
at sententing,

2. Unlawful pretrial punishment and circumstances tantamount to confinement are evaluated
according to the totality of the circumstances. See United States v. Herrin, 32 M.J. 983, 985
(A.CM.R. 1991); United States v. SBiH¥00 M.J*528; 350 (A & M:R¥985). The defense

requests bonﬁnement credit under three separate and distinct principles of law. Each is addressed
scparately below:

a. Restnchon Tantamount to Confinement. A soldier is entitled to day-for-day
sentence credit for any pretrial restriction equivalent to confinement. United States v. Mason, 19
M.J. 274_(C M.A. 1983). A determination of restriction tantamount to confinement is made
under a totality of the circumstances. Factors to consider include the limits of the restriction,
access t0=faci1ities whether the soldier is singled out by the command, and whether the soldier is
permitted to continue normally assigned duties. See United States v, Sassman, 32 M.J. 687, 690
(AF.CMR. 1991); United States v. Russell, 30 M.J. 977, 979 {A.C.M.R. 1990). SPC Ambuh!
should be granted at least 15 days of credit for restriction tantamount to confinement.

(1) Time period of 20 August 2004 — 3 September 2004: From 20 August 2004
through 3 September 2004, SPC Ambuhl suffered restriction tantamount to confinement by being
under 24-hour supervision by a military police non-commissioned officer (NCO). On
apprommately 19 August 2004, SPC Ambuhl and her assigned military defense counsel traveled
from Baghdad through Kuwait to Manheim, Germany, for a scheduled court appearance in
Germany. Upon SPC Ambuhl’s arrival at Taylor and Coleman Barracks in Germany, the
government subjected her to greater restriction than she had ever faced at Camp Victory, Iraq, a
war-zone, SPC Ambuhl was not allowed to leave her temporary barracks building without an
escort. She was not permitted to go anywhere without this assigned E5 “shadow.” SPC Ambuhl
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could not leave her barracks to meet with either of her attorneys unless the escort was present.
SPC Ambuhl could not leave her barracks to go to the Shoppette unless her escort was present.
SPC Ambuhl could not Ieave her barracks to attend religious services on-post unless her escort
was present. Even in the presence of one, or both, of her defense attorneys, SPC Ambuhl was
not to be without this NCO escort. On one occasion when SPC Ambuhl was at a video
teleconference with her attorneys at an on-post conference room, she was not allowed to walk
down the hallway to use the latrine without her escort. For this “infraction,” the NCO publicly
chastised SPC Ambuhl. This type of restriction goes well-beyond the bounds allowed in the
military justice system.

(2) Time period of 6 February 2004 — 30 October 2004: The actions of the
command as early as 6 February 2004 are restriction tantamount to confinement. On 6 February
2004, the government moved SPC Ambuhl away from her regular duties at Baghdad Central
Correctional Facility (BCCF) at Abu Ghraib. The government separated SPC Ambuhl from her
unit and reassigned her to an unknown unit at Camp Victory. By moving SPC Ambuhl to a
different base, under the circumstances of deployment, the command effectively isolated and
restricted the soldier. When, in a deployed environment, a soldier is reliant on her battle-buddies
and her squad. The command moved SPC Ambuhl from that emotionally-secure environment,
She no longer lived, worked or socialized with her squad or platoon. She had little to no contact
with her platoon during the time she was at Camp Victory. Se was moved to an unfamiliar post
where he knew only approximately four junior enlisted soldiers. The acts of the command were
intended as restriction tantamount to confinement and were done to punish the soldier.

Another factor that contributes to the reasonable conclusion that SPC Ambuhl suffered
restriction tantamount to confinement, if not also pretrial punishment was the seizure and
removal of her issued weapons. The command toock SPC Ambuhl’s weapons from her on 20
March 2004. Despite repeated requests by the scldier, the command never returned any of her
weapons to her; nor did the command provide any reason for its decision. In the Iraq Theater of
Operations a weapon is a part of each soldier’s assigned uniform. The obvious absence of a
weapon signals to others that the particular soldier is different. The command had no legitimate
reason to seize SPC Ambuhl’s weapons, other than punishment and restriction. SPC Ambuhl
was not a threat to those around her, nor was she charged with a crime of violence using a
weapon. She never threatened to shoot any fellow soldiers or herself. To prohibit SPC Ambuhl
from carrying a weapon on Camp Victory, a base under constant mortar and small arms attacks,
for force protection was a decision made by the command designed to punish the soldier. At no
time during the investigation of the allegations has SPC Ambuhl been identified as a flight risk,
thus to remove her weapons so she would not leave post is an invalid argument, and reveals the
command’s bias against the soldier.

Additionally, since 6 February 2004, SPC Ambuhi was not permitted to continue her
normally assigned duties. Instead, SPC Ambuhl was singled-out and ordered to work extra duty

2
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type details. The factor on which the SCM should focus is not whether the tasks performed by
SPC Ambuhl were those normally assigned to an E-4, but rather that the tasks were assigned to
SPC Ambuhl because she was facing UCMJ action. Absent the pending GCMJ action, SPC
Ambuhl would have performed the duties of a 95B. She was denied the opportunity to contribute
meaningfilly to her unit and was forced to do menial tasks.

During her assignment to HHC, 16% MP Brigade, SPC Ambuhl and several of her co-
accused were treated like complete outcasts by the command. SPC Ambuhl did not take part in
regularly-scheduled company missions or taskings. Instead, she and the co-accused, were given
special assignments, tasked directly from the company 1SG. Some of the tasks to which 1SG

assigned SPC Ambuhl were: to pick up trash and cigarette butts along the road on Camp

ictory; to paint “no parking” curbs on Camp Victory; and to fill sandbags on a daily basis.
Adding insult to injury, the 1SG directed that these tasks be performed in areas that were not
assigned to HHC, 16™ MP Brigade and were not in the Brigade AQ. SPC Ambuhl was only
allowed to work with the other co-accused or other soldiers facing UCMYJ action; as such, she
was easily distinguished from other soldiers. SPC Ambuhl was forced to endure taunts from
fellow soldiers while completing these tasks out on the main thoroughfares of Camp Victory.
She suffered further degradation when other soldiers took photos of her sweeping the streets.
When asked by SPC Ambuhl to intervene on numerous occasions, 1SG and CP
did nothing. What defies logic is that the government had no issue with assigning SPC

Ambuhl to I&R duties at BCCF, an area in which she had no experience; but once the soldier

was moved to Camp Victory she easily could have performed tasks in her assigned Combat
Support operations role.

Another factor to consider in determining if the command subject SPC Ambuhl to
restriction tantamount to confinement is whether or not she was entitled to leave the Camp
Victory AO, much less Iraq. She is entitled to credit because her command punished her by
requiring her to remain in Iraq for approximately 18 months without even the opportunity for
R&R leave or a 4-day pass. From February 2003 through February 2004, the Army assigned
SPC Ambuhl to the 372™ Military Police (MP) Company. On 12 March 2004, the government
arbitrarily reassigned SPC Ambuhl to an unfamiliar company, HHC, 16" MP Brigade. Asa
result of this arbifrary reassignment, SPC Ambuhl was treated as an outcast by her new command
and forced to remain in Iraq for several months past the redeployment of her true company, the
372° MP Company. During her entire deployment, SPC Ambuhl was not granted the
opportunity to take leave or her authorized and encouraged two weeks of R&R. Once it became
clear that she would be required to remain in theater, SPC Ambuhl request leave, on several
occasions, through the appropriate channels in her company. She was denied leave on each
occasion. Unlike other soldiers of equal rank, SPC Ambuhl was not granted any 4-day passes
and was denied the opportunity to relax at a place like Qatar or in the northern mountains of Iraq.

These factors contribute to the determination that the company imposed restriction tantamount to
confinement on SPC Ambuhl.
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b. Vielation of R.C.M., 305: When restriction is tantamount to confinement, the
procedures for review of the propriety of prefrial confinement set forth in R.C.M. 305 are
triggered. If the government fails to comply with those procedural requirements, day-for-day
credit for those days of noncompliance is required. United States v. Gregory, 21 M.J. 952
(A.CMR. 1986), aff'd, 23 M.J. 246 {C.M.A. 1986). The command subjected SPC Ambubhl to
restriction tantamount to confinement from 20 August 2004 through 3 September 2004, This
restriction should have been reviewed within 7-days of its imposition, IAW R.C.M. 305(1)(2);
thus, the review should have occurred no later than 26 August 2004. The government never
conducted a review of this restriction but rather chose to end the restriction on 3 September 2004
when SPC Ambuhl left Germany to return to Iraq. SPC Ambuhl is entitled to additional
administrative credit under R.C.M. 305(k) as a remedy for the government’s failure to follow this
rule. The defense requests and additional 8 days of credit for the period from 27 August 2004
through 3 September 2004 for the government’s failure to review SPC Ambuhl’s restriction
tantamount to confinement under R.C.M. 305(1).

¢. Unlawful Pretrial Punishment Under Article 13, UCMJ. SPC Ambuhl suffered
hostile and degrading treatment from the government and the leadership of her company and is
entitled to credit for unlawful pretrial punishment under Article 13, U.C.M.J.

Pretrial punishment is forbidden in accordance with Article 13, UM.C.J.,, 10 U.S.C. § 813,
which states that:

No person, while being held for trial, may be subjected to punishment or penalty
other than arrest or confinement upon the charges pending against him, nor shall
the arrest or confinement imposed upon him be any more rigorous than the
circumstances required to insure his presence . . .

The Court of Military Appeals in United States v. James, 28 M.J. 214 (C.M.A. 1989),
adopting the standard in Bell v. Wolfish, 441 U.S. 520 (1979), set out a two-prong test to
determine if a violation of Article 13 has occurred. The Court should first decide whether the
particular conditions were imposed with the intent to punish. See id. at 216. If the answer is yes,
then the conditions are punishment and the Court should consider a sentence credit. See id. If
the answer is no, the Court should inquire as to whether the purposes purportedly served by the
conditions are reasonably related to a legitimate governmental objective. Seeid. “[IJfa
restriction or condition is not reasonably related to a legitimate goal - if it is arbitrary or

purposeless -- a court permissibly may infer that the purpose of the governmental action is
punishment.” Bell, 441 1J.S. at 539.

Military appeals courts have routinely and “unequivocally” condemned conduct by those in
positions of authority which result in needless military degradation, or public denunciation or
humiliation of an accused.” United States v. Latta, 34 M.J. 596, 597 (A.C.M.R. 1992), citing

4
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United States v. Cruz, 25 M.J. 326 (CM.A. 1987). Specifically, “public denunciation by the
commander and subsequent military degradation before the troops prior to courts-martial
constitute unlawful pretrial punishment prohibited by Article 13.” Cruz, 25 M.J. at 330, The
court further denounced the unnecessary public identification of an apprehended person as a
criminal suspect. See id. at 331 n.3.

Accused soldiers may be entitled to credit toward an approved sentence if they are
repeatedly subject to disparaging remarks by the command. See United States. v. Stamper, 39
M.J. 1097, 1100 (A.CM.R. 1994) (awarding credit based on disparaging remarks by a company
commander regarding a larceny the accused allegedly committed). In such instances, “these
remarks chipped away at the accused’s presumption of innocence.” Id. Further, Article 13 ¢redit
can be granted for actions of the command toward the accused soldier when “some of the
[restraints] bore no relation to the purposes of his restriction and were unnecessary to his
presence.” United States v. Carmel, 4 M.J. 744, 748 (N.CM.R. 1977).

In addition to the behavior of the command described in paragraph 2a(2) of this
memorandum, SPC Ambuhl was further subjected to unlawful pretrial punishment. 1SG
routinely, punished SPC Ambuhl by making her do menial manual labor, While this activity
itself is no unexpected for junior-enlisted soldiers, 1SG West would require of SPC Ambuhl
labor that was being done by contractors. For example, the 16 MP Brigade hired contractors to
fill sandbags and Hesco barriers to fortify the tents of 16™ MP Brigade soldiers. 1SG
prohibited the contractors from fortifying SPC Ambuhl’s tent and required her to do it without
the assistance of contractors. Further, he required her to conduct such tasks during non-duty
hours. The only reason for these decisions was to punish SPC Ambuhl.

ISG- also subject SPC Ambuhl to degrading comments. Repeatedly, he would
comment to SPC Ambuhl and others about her guilt. He would berate her about how she alone
brought down the reputation of the company and the U.S. Army. lsG.made these
inappropriate comments directly to SPC Ambubl and to any NCO or junior enlisted soldier that
would listen. Such behavior on behalf of the company 1SG belies the presumption of innocent
until proven guilty and erodes any confidence among soldiers in the military justice system.

On one oceasion, SPC Ambuhl volunteered to help fill backpacks with school supplies.
After spending several days with just one or two other soldiers, filling dozens of packs, SPC
Ambuhl requested to be permitted to go with members of HHC to distribute the backpacks to
local Iraqi children. Her request was denied because she was a “criminal.” To worsen the
humiliation to SPC Ambuhl, other members of HHC, 16% MP Brigade, received (and took)
credit for her work and received positive publicity in “Stars and Stripes.” The command knew
that distributing the backpacks to Iraqi children was important to SPC Ambuhl; they knew that it
mattered to her. The command’s denial of this request can be deemed as nothing less than
punishment to the soldier.
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SPC Ambuhl is entitled to additional credit under Article 13, UCM]J, for unlawful pretrial
punishment for the actions by his chain-of-command and for the unnecessary comments made by
the unit leadership. See Latta, 34 M.J. at 597, United States v. Villamil-Perez, 32 M.J. 341, 343
(CMA 1991); Cruz, 25 M.J. at 330. The hostile treatment was demeaning to SPC Ambuhl and
chipped away at her presumption of innocence, See Stamper, 39 M.J. at 1100. There is no set
formula for calculating credit for pretrial punishment. If the military judge finds that illegal
pretrial punishment occurred, he or she determines the sentence credit to which the accused is
entitled. The military judge may order more than day-for-day credit for illegal pretrial
punishment. See United States v. Suzuki, 14 M.J. 491 (C.M.A. 1983).

3. Further, under the principle of parity, SPC Ambuhl should be granted at least 20 days credit
toward any sentence of confinement. On 21 October 2004, SS plead
guilty at a Genéral Court-Martial to several violations of the U.C.M.J. At trial, the military judge
approved an agreed-upon 20 days credit toward SSG- approved sentence of
confinement. The defense position is that HHC, 16" MP Brigade, kept SSG -under the
same copditions as those suffered by SPC Ambuhl. While a non-commissioned officer, SSG
suffered similar degrading and humiliating treatment by the company and was
subjected to substantially the same escort requirements as SPC Ambuhl from 20 August 2004
through 3 September 2004. Though the substance of these soldier’s offenses differ significantly,
as do their degrees of culpability, the restriction tantamount to confinement and pretrial
punishment were substantially the same. Parity and justice require that SPC Ambuhl, at a
minimum, be granted 20 days of credit toward any adjudged sentence of confinement.

4. Under the totality of the circumstances, SPC Ambuhl’s chain of command kept SPC Ambuhl
under restriction tantamount to confinement and unlawfully punished her prior to trial. SPC
Ambuhl is entitled to 15 days credit for restriction tantamount to confinement, 8 days for a
violation of R.C.M. 305(1), and 5 days for the command’s continued violations of Article 13,
U.C.M.J. The defense request should be granted and SPC Ambuhl should be awarded an
appropriate amount of ¢credit toward any approved sentence of confinement.

5. Questions concerning this memorandum may be addressed to the undersigned via email at
' T or by telephone at DSN: (312) 521

/Joriiinil iiﬂii‘
CPT, JA
Trial Defense Counsel
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DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
Headquarters, 11l Corps
Victory Base, [rag
APQO AE 08342-1400

AFZF-CG JuL 212004

MEMORANDUM FOR Staff Judge Advocate

SUBJECT: Disposition of the Court-Martial Charges Preferred Against Specialist Megan M.
Ambuhl (¢

The recommendations of the Staff Judge Advocate are approved. The attached original
charges and additional charges, and their specifications, are referred to a general court-
martial convened by Court-Martial Convening Order Number 1, dated 14 January 2004, as
amended by Court-Martial Convening Order Number 3, dated 8 March 2004, In accordance
with RCM 8601{e)(2), the additional charges and their specifications are joined with the
original charges and spegcifications.

THOMAS F. METZ

Lieutenant General, USA
Commanding
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MEMORANDUM FOR Commander, lil Corps, Victory Base, Irag, APO AE 09342-1400

SUBJECT: Advice on Disposition of the Court-Martial Charges Preferred Against
Specialist Megan M. Ambuhl { - =ACTION MEMORANDUM

1. Purpose. To forward for disposition, in accordance with Rule for Court-Martial
(RCM) 407, the court-martial charges against Specialist Megan M. Ambuhl, Headquarters
and Headquarters Company, 16th Military Police Brigade, 1ll Corps, Victory Base, Iraq.

2. Recommend_at_ioné.

a. Chain of Command. As reflected by the court-martial charges transmittal
memoranda, the soldier's commanders recommend referral of the charges and the
additional charges to a general court-martial.

b. Staff Judge Advocate. | recommend you refer the attached charges and additional
charges, as well as their specifications, to a general court-martial, pursuant to RCM 801,
and refer the case to trial by Court-Martial Convening Order Number 1, dated 14 January
2004, as amended by Court-Martial Convening Order Number 3, dated 8 March 2004, with
instructions that the additional charges be joined with the original charges.

c. Afticle 32 Investigation. As reflected by the Investigating Officer Report, the
Article 32 Investigating Officer recommended that Charges 1l {maltreatment) and 1V
(indecent acts) not be forwarded for trial and that the remaining charges be forwarded to a
general court-martial. The additional charges were not preferred before the Article 32

investigation; however, the evidence supporting the additional charges was investigated at
the hearing.

3. Staff Judge Advocate Review. [n accordance with RCM 406 and Article 34, Uniform
Cade of Military Justice (UCMJ), 1 have reviewed the attached charges and supporting
documentation. {tis my legal conclusion that:

a. The spéciﬁcations allege cffenses under the UCMJ;

b. The allegations of the offenses are warranted by the evidence indicated in the
attached documentation; and

¢. The court-martial will have jurisdiction over the accused and the offenses alleged.

4. POC is—at DSN 318-822

Encls

1. Charge Sheet (20 Mar 04) COL, JA
2. Charge Sheet (13 Jul 04) Staff Judge Advocate

3. Transmittai Memoranda | (002354
4, Article 32 Investigation
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AFZA-AP-HHC

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

SUBJECT: Service of Referral of Charges in the Case of United State v.
Specialist Megan M. AmbuhL

1. I hereby acknowledge that the initial and additional charges against me were
referred to General Court-Martial on 21 July 2004. | further acknowledge receipt
of said Charge Sheet, Continuation Page(s), and Court-Martial Convening
Order(s).

2. It understand that | should contact my Trial Defense Attorney as soon as

possible to further discuss my case.
ME@AN M. AMBUHL

SPC, USA
23 Jul, Y
(date) ~
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AFZA-AP-HHC

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

SUBJECT: Accused Receipt of Referral of Charges

1. | hereby acknowledge that on 23 July 2004 Specialist Megan M. Ambubwas
served a copy of the Charge Sheets, Continuation Page(s), and Court-Martial
Convening Order(s).

2. Due to the unavailability of government counsel block 15 of the charge sheet
will be filled out at a later date.

SGT, USA
Paralegal
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MEMORANDUM FOR RECCRELC

SUBJECT: Service of Preferral of Additional Charges in the case of United
States v. Specialist Megan M. A_r( buhl

1. { hereby acknowledge that the additional charges against me were read and
preferred on this 13 day of | JulM 2 o0y ,at_0%12-  hours.
Further, | hereby acknowledge receipt &f said charge sheet(s) and allied papers.

2. | further understand that | shquld contact my attorney as soon as possible, for

further advice in my case.
MEGAN M. AMBUHL

SPC, USA

002357




DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
Headquarters and Headquarters Company,
16™ Military Police Brigade {Airborne)
Victory Base, APO AE 09342

AFZA-AP-HHC 28 JUN 04

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

SUBJECT: Assumption of Command

{AW AR 600-20, Chapter 2, Paragraph 3a, the undersigned assumes command of
Headquarters and Headquarters Company, 18" Military Police Brigade (Airbome}
(WFP6AA), Victory Base, Irag, APO AE 00342, effective 0001 hours on 28 JUN (4
to 2400 hours on 17 JUL 04. '

CPT, MP
Commanding
DISTRIBUTION: '
1-Cdr, 16" MP BDE (ABN)
1-Cdr, HHC, 16" MP BDE (ABN)
1-Bde S-1, 16" MP BDE (ABN)
1-Bde $-2, 16™ MP BDE (ABN)
1-Cdr, 15™ PSB, Victory Base PSB
1-Cdr, 15™ Finance Battalion, Victory Base
1-Office of the Staff Judge Advocate
1-Individual
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|

|
MEMORANDUM THRU Commander, 16" Military Police Brigade {Airborne), Camp
Victory, Iraq APO AE 08342

FOR Deputy Commander, IlI Corpé, Victory Base, Irag APO AE 09342

SUBJECT: Transmittal of Additional Court-Martial Charges — United States v. Specialist
Megan M. Ambuhi

1. Pursuant to R.C.M. 401(c)(2) anfd 402(2), Manual for Court-Martial, United States
(2002 Edition), forwarded herewith are the additional court-martial charges pertaining to
Specialist Megan, - , HHC, 16™ MP Bde (Abn), Camp Victory, Iraq APO AE
09342. :
2. Documentary evidence upon which the charges are based is enclosed.
3. All material witnesses are expected to be available at the time of trial.
4. There is no evidence of previous court-martial conviction(s).
5. | recommend that the charges ahd specifications be referred to trial by

a. __ Summary Court-Martial

b. __ Special Court-Martial

c. ___ Special Court-Martial (empowered to adjudge a Bad Conduct Discharge)

d.‘perai Court-Martial.

Encls
as

CPT, MP
Commanding
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AFZA-AP-CO
MEMORANDUM FOR Deputy Conl
irag APO AE 09342

SUBJECT: Transmittal of initial ar]
Specialist Meqan M. Ambuhl

1. { have reviewed the enclosed in
32 Report pertaining to Specialist
{Abn), Yictory Base, Iraqg APO AE {
2. | recommend that the enclosed

a. ____ Summary Court-Mar,

b. __ Special Court-Martia

d eneral Court-Marti

Encls
nc

1351 0Y
2 F 200%

nmander, Multi National Corps - Irag, Victory Base,

d Additional Court-Martial Charges — United States v.

itial and additional court- ial charges and Article
Negan M. Ambuhl, HHC, 16™ MP Bde
D9342.

charges and specifications be referred to trial by
tial

c. ___ Special Cc»urt-l\{[.etrtiélli (empowered to adjudge a Bad Conduct Discharge)

I

COL, M
Commanding
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AFZA-AP-HHC

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

SUBJECT: Service of Preferral of Charges in the case of United States v.
Specialist Megan M. Ambuhl

. 1 hereby qiknowiedge that the charges against me were read and preferred
onthis _ 29" day of _maRCH cat_ 2221 hours. Further, |
hereby acknowledge receipt of sald charge sheet(s) and allied papers.

2. | further uniderstand that | have an appointment at Trial Defense Services,
ph: (302) 83 trailer B12, Camp Victory, Iraq, at

1

ﬁgA%?h /N

MEGAN M. AMBUHL
SPC, USA
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P-HHC
Joe Maﬂ:ét Loo4

MEMORANDUM THRU Commander, 16™ Military Police Brigade (Airborne), Camp

Victory,

FOR De

AE 08342

fraqg APO AE 09342 '

puty Commander, Combined Joint Task Force Seven, Camp Victory, lragq APO

SUBJECT. Transmittal of Court-Martial Charges — United States v. Specialist Megan

M. Amblhi '

1. Pursbant to R.C.M. 401(c)(2) and 402(2), Manual for Court-Martial, United States
(2002 Eﬁitioni| ﬁwfded herewith are the court-martial charges pertaining to Specialist

Megan,
2. Docu

3. Aiilm

 HHC, 16™ MP Bde (Abn), Camp Victory, Irag APO AE 09342,
mentary evidence upon which the charges are based is enclosed.

aterial withesses are expected'to be available at the time of trial.

4. There is no evidence of previous court-martial conviction(s).

5. | recommend that the charges and specifications be referred to trial by

a

b,

Encls
as

_ Summary Court-Martial

__ Special Court-Martial

| ___ Special Court-Martial (empowered to adjudge a Bad Conduct Discharge)

. meneral Court-Mattial.

CPT, MP
Commanding

062362




CERTIFICATE

[ HEREBY CERTIFY THAT | AM THE CURRENT CUSTODIAN OF THE PERSONNEL
RecorDs OF SPECIALIST MEGAN M. AMBUHL, | +c

16™ MP BDE (ABN) VICTORY BASE, IRAQ APO AE 09342, AND THAT THE
ATTACHED PERSONNEL QUALIFICATION RECORD & DA FORM 2-1 IS A TRUE
AND ACGURATE COPY AS MAINTAINED, IN ACCORDANCE WITH REGULATION,

IN THE SOLDIER'S RECORDS.

2LT, AG
Brigade Adjutant
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SECTIONV - MISCEL ooy
27. REMARKS 28 ITEM CONTINUATION 8
ITEM 110
NO. LTy
ol
-
o)
| SECTION IX - RESERVE COMPONENT DATA
373 READY RESERVE OBLIGATION EXPIRATION DATE: Y YERS
b. DA FORM 3726 OR 37256-1 AGREEMENT EXPIRATION DATE:
(23 DATE DA FORM 208 PREPARED: C. SERVICE OBLIGATION EXPIRATION DATE: TG 7R 2 7
30) DATE DUPLICATE DA FORM 2-1 SUBMITTED 4. MANDATORY REMOVAL FROM ACTIVE STATUS:
REPORT OF CHANGES e RETIREMENT YEAR ENDING DATE.
TR Tie9 m._oﬁ,.._u.w._ra_ 14} ﬂTm_ 17f8 1] |20 21 _NMTU 33 DATE 14 SIGNATURE
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DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
HEADQUARTERS, 16™ MILITARY POLICE BRIGADE {AIRBORNE)
CAMP VICTORY, IRAQ, APO AE 09342

REPLY TO
ATICHTTCH OF

ORDERF 72-5 12 March 2004

AMBUHL, MEGAN M., SPC, 95B10, = 372 Military Police Company
(WT | ), APO AE 09342

You areattached or released from attachment.

Attached to: HHC, 16" Military Police Brigade (Airborne) (WFPBAA) APO AE 09342
Reportirlg Date: 12 March 2004
Period: {indefinite

Additiongl Instructions: You are attached for personnel service support to include
Awards and Decorations, UCMJ, and ali other forms of personnel and legal
administration support.

Format: {745
CPT, MP
Brigade Adjutant
DISTRIBUTION:
CDR, 372" MP CO (1)

CDR, HHIC, 16" MP BDE (ABN) (1)
File (1)
lndividu?l (3)

002370



J |
'

REPORT TC SUoPEND F

For use of this form,

AVORABLE PERSONNEL ACTIONS

see AR 600-8-2; the proponent agency is MILPERCEN.

{FLAG)

SECTION | - ADMINISTRATIVE DATA

-"‘2:)%/’ oY

1. NAME /last, First, Al 2. SSN 3. RANK
AMBUHL, MEGAN M. Yy E-4/ SPC
4. . . 5. ETS/ESA/MRD
On actl\%e duty D Mot on active duty D On ADT 20080128
8. UNIT ASSIGNED AI\IL‘%I ABMY MAJOR COMMAND 7. STATION (Geographical focation)
372ND MP CO i 372ND MP CO
99TH RRC . ABU GHRAIB, IRAGQ APO AE 09335
B. PSC CONT ACTION AND TELEPHONE MUMBER
MSG
CPL
9. THIS ACTION IS TO:
initiate alﬂag I:] Transfer a flag D Remove flag
(Sections If and V oniy} {Sections it and V oniy) {Sections IV and V only)
i
| SECTION I! - INITIATE A FLAG
1o A FLAG 15 INITIATED, EFFECTIVE 20040125 FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON:
NON-TRANSFERABLE TRANSFERABLE
Adverse action (A) ] APET failure ()
5
[ ifeination - field initiates {8y [[]  weight control program (K3
D Refnoval from selection list - field initiated (C}
5
D Referred OER {Dy
D Segurity violation {F)
§
D HOPA use only - elimination or removal from selection list {F}
SECTION Il - TRANSFER A FLAG
O aree 15 TRANSFERED FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON:
D Adverse action - HQDA directad reassignment (G) D APFT failure {J)
D Advierse action - punishment phase (H} D Weight control program (i)
D Supperting documents attached? D Yes D No
!
: SECTION IV - REMOVE A FLAG
[  aracslremoven, errecTive FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON:
D Cas¢ closed favorably (C} I:I Scldigr 1ransterred to a different Army component or
diseharged while case in process (destroy case file) {E}
D Discplinary action taken (D) l:’ Other final action {F)
L
; SECTION V - AUTHENTICATION
HSTRIBUTION
1 - Unit Commander 1 - F&AD
1-PSC 1 - Comrander, gaining unit [ransfer flag oniy)
(A ANK, TITLE _AND DRGANIZATION SIGNA, DATE
MLT MP Commanding
nd Mittary Police Coinpany :

}A FORM 268, JUN &7

EDITION OF 1 JAN 80 (S OBSOLETE,

L0 )

U Mabrcsd>

1



e

. HEADQUAR JERS, 99TH REGIONAL SUPPORT COn o
: 99 SOLDIERS LANE
CORAOPOLTS, PENNSYLVANIA 15108-2550
ORDERS M—052-0L02 21 February 2003
AMBUHL MEGAN MARY ’ . grpC
' 0372 MP CO COMEAT SUPPORT (WTEZAA)

CUMBERLAND, MD 21502-5805

You |are orderdd to Active Duty as a member of your Reserve Component unit for the
periled indicafjed unless sooner released or unless extended. Proceed from your
curdent laecation in sufficient time to report by the date specified. You enter
active duty upon reporting to unit home station.

Repgrt to: 037 MP CO COMBAT SUPPORT (WTEZAA), 14418 MCMULLEN HWY 8W,

CUMBERLAND, MD 21502-5605 Report On: 24 Februaxy 2003

Repgrt to: For[e Lee, Building P6008, Fort Lee, VA 23801 Report On: 27 February

Period of act
Purposa: Mobi

Mobilization

Additional inst

FOR| ARMY USE
AUTHORITY: HQ

20013

e duty: 365 Days
L ization for ENDURING FREEDOM

ategory code: YV©
~uctions: 01, 02, 03, 04, 06, 07, 08, 69, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15,
16, 17

DA MSG 171644ZFEB03/DAMO—ODM/ORDTYP/MOEORD/HQDA ONE/OEF NO.322-03

Accpunting cllhassification:

2132010.0
2132010.0
2132020.0

Sex: F

MDQ: PM
PMOS/AOC/AST

00 01-1100 PLIWLCOQ 11%%/1l2** VFRE F3203 5570 595989
100 01-1100 P2W2C0Q 1i%*/i2%* VFRE F3203 5570 589399
hoO 01L-1100 P135198 21%*/22%*/25%% VFRE F3203 5570 $8999%

L.IC: 95B1O

HORL
PERD- 2% Jda
DOR: 29 Janu
Segurity clej
Comp : USAR
Poxmat: 165

unary 2002

ry 2002

rance: SECRET

FOR THE COMMANDER:

DIBTRIBUT TON):

*#**********i**t********************1‘**1{
*

OFFICIAL *
99TH REGIONAL SUPPORT COMMAND «

B S T2 s s XA R L A AR R A RS LA
MPO
MILITARY PERSONWEL OFFICER

*

Ml PLUS

INDIVIDUAL CPNCERNED {(4)
FAMILY ASSISTANCE OFFLICER {1}

MPRJ

FILE (ORIGIMAL + 1}

002372



CAUTION: NOT TO BE USED FOR THIS IS AN IVMPORTANT RECORD, " ANY ALTERATIONS iN SHADED
DEMTIFICATION FURPOSES SAFEGUARD iT. AREAS RENDER FORR VOID

CERTIF!CATE OF RELEASE OR DISCHARGE FROM ACTIVE DUTY

2, DEPARTMENT, COMPONENT AND BRANCH

5. DATE OF BIRTH /YYYYMMDD) | 6. RESERVE OBLIG. TERM DATE

Year 2010{Month 01{Day 28
CF RECOF!D AT TIME OF ENTRY [City and siate, or complete

arddrace if bamwel

"J.a PLACE OF ENTRY INTO ACTIVE DUTY

.a ASSIGNMENT AND MAJOR COMMAND 8.b STATION WHERE SEPA.RATED
CoO C 787TH MP EN TR TC FORT LEONARD WOOD, MO 65473-8%35

9. COMMAND TO WHICH TRANSFERRED _ .1 10. SGLI COVERAGE L_] None

352 MP CO (CBT [SPT} 1850 BALTIMORE RD ROCKVILLE MD 20851 Amount: $ 20, 000. 00

11. PRIMARY SPECIANTY fList number, title ang years and months in 12, RECORE OF SERVICE Year{s} Monthis) Davyis
specialty. List additional speciaity numbers and titles nvolving 2 : X

. Date entered AD This Pericd
. Separation Oate This Pericd
. Net Active Service This Period
. Total Prior Active Service
. Total Prior inactive Service
. Foreign Service
. Sea Sarvice

) h. Effective Date of Pay Grade : :
13. DECORATIONS, MEDALS, BADGES, CITATIONS AND CAMPAIGN RIBBONS AWARDED OR AUTHORIZED f44 perit peﬁods of service)
NONE/ /NOTHING FOLLOWS

periods of one or more vears.}
NONE/ /NOTHING FOLLOWS

C-B Bt NN N~N RN K N1}

14. MILITARY EDUCATION (Course title, number of weeks and month and year completed)
MEILITARY POLICE, 17 WEEKS, 2002//NOTHING FOLLOWS

15.2 MEMBER CONTRIBUTED TO POST-VIETNAM ERA Yes | Mo | 15.bHIGH SCHOOL GRADUATE OR ves | no | 16.DAYS ACCRUED LEAVE PAID
VETERAN'S EDUCAT‘ON) L ASSISTANCE PROGHAR X EQUVALENT X NONE

17. MEMBER WAS PROVIDED Ia COMPLETE DENTAL EXAM AND ALL APPAQPRIATE DENTAL SERVICES ANG TREATMEMT WITHIN 30 DAYS PRIOR TO SEPARATION AL Yes WA Mo




